36 Cedar Avenue West
PO Box 198
Port Clements, BC

The Village of VOT1RO

O.FFICE: 250-557-4295
PORT CLEMENTS e
Email: office@porictements.ca

”Gateway to the Vw-ldemessl ’ Web: www.portclements.ca

7:00 PM Regular Meeting of Council, Monday, April 4", 2022

AGENDA
1. ADOPT AGENDA

2. PETITIONS, DELEGATIONS & OPENING OF SEALED TENDERS

3. MINUTES
M-1—March 21%, 2022, Regular Council Meeting Minutes

4. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES & UNFINISHED BUSINESS

5. ORIGINAL CORRESPONDENCE
C-1—INFO-- March Board Highlights — North Coast Regional District
C-2—INFO-Northern Community Relations 2021 Annual Report - BC Hydro
C-3—INFO—Ban of Plastic and Bio-plastic Utensils - District of Ucluelet
C-4—INFO-—COVID-19 Vaccine Opportunities — Northern Health
C-5—INFO—March Regional Meetings with Ministers — Ministry of Municipal Affairs
C-6—INFO/REQUEST—Payphone Removal — WiMacTel Canada Inc.
C-7—INVITATION—Roundtable Discussion re: Rural Internet Services — Ministry of Citizen Services
C-8—INFO—2021 Annual Report — Municipal Insurance Association of British Columbia

6. FINANCE

7. GOVERNMENT
G-1—Request for Letter of Support — Grant Application — Port Clements Historical Society
G-2—Bird Tower Trail Widening -- Sunset Park Revitalization Project- Project Manager Mushynsky

8. NEW BUSINESS

9. REPORTS & DISCUSSIONS
R-1—INFO - Regular Report on Current Operations — CAQ Marjorie Dobson

10. ACTION ITEMS
11. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC & PRESS
12. IN-CAMERA
90(2) A part of a council meeting must be closed to the public if the subject matter being considered relates
to one or more of the following:
(b) the consideration of information received and held in confidence relating to negotiations between the

municipality and a provincial government or the federal government or both, or between a provincial
government or the federal government or both and a third party;

13. ADJOURNMENT
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36 Cedar Avenue West
PO Box 198
Port Clements, BC

The Village of VOT1RO

publc Worke. 250.557.4295
PORT CLEMENTS FAX: 250-557-4568

Email: office@portclements.ca

”Gatewayto the Wilderness” Weh: www.portclements.ca
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of Council, Monday, March 21%, 2022
Present:
Mavyor Doug Daugert

Councillor Brigid Cumming
Councillor Ian Gouid

Councillor Kelly Whitney-Gould
Councillor Kazamir Falconbridge

CAO Marjorie Dobson
Deputy CAO Elizabeth Cumming

Members of the public: Craig Beachy, 5gt. Damon MacDonald (Delegation),

Meeting Called to Order at 7:00 PM
Mayor Daugert: | call to order this meeting of the Council of the Village of Port Clements being held on the
traditional territory of the Haida People.
1. ADOPT AGENDA
2022-03-080—Moved by Councillor Falconbridge, seconded by Councillor Cumming
THAT Council adopts the March 21%, Regular Council Meeting Agenda as presented.
CARRIED

2. PETITIONS, DELEGATIONS & OPENING OF SEALED TENDERS
D-1—Policing Reports - Sgt. Damon MacDonald, Masset RCMP Detachment

3. MINUTES
M-1—March 7', 2022, Regular Council Meeting Minutes
2022-03-081—Moved by Councillor Cumming, seconded by Councillor Whitney-Gould
THAT Council adopts the March 7%, 2022, Regular Council Meeting Minutes as presented.
CARRIED

M-2—March 15", 2022, Special Council Meeting Minutes

2022-03-082—Moved by Councillor Falconbridge, seconded by Councillor Cumming

THAT Council adopts the March 15%, 2022, Special Council Meeting Minutes as presented.
CARRIED

4. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES & UNFINISHED BUSINESS

5. ORIGINAL CORRESPONDENCE
C-1—REQUEST—Condemning Russian Invasion of Ukraine - Village of New Denver
2022-03-083—Moved by Councillor Falconbridge, seconded by Councillor Cumming
THAT Council receives the request to condemn the Russian Invasion of Ukraine from the Village of New
Denver.
CARRIED
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C-2—REQUEST—5Support for Resolutions — City of Abbotsford

2022-03-084—Moved by Councillor Whitney-Gould, seconded by Counciller Falconbridge
THAT Council receives the request for support for resolutions from the City of Abbotsford.
CARRIED

C-3—INVITATION—Current Electoral District Boundaries - BC Electoral Boundaries Commission
2022-03-085—Moved by Councillor Falconbridge, seconded by Councillor Whitney-Gould

THAT Council receives the invitation on the current electoral district boundaries from the BC Electoral
Boundaries Commission.

CARRIED

6. FINANCE
F-1—2022 Budget — Public Review/Finalization prior to Presentation of Financial Bylaw
2022-03-086—Moved by Councillor Falconbridge, seconded by Councillor Cumming
THAT Council adopts the 2022 Budget as presented.
CARRIED

7. GOVERNMENT
G-1—2022 Budget Request - Recreation Commission & Vibrant Community Commission
2022-03-087—Moved by Councillor Falconbridge, seconded by Councillor Whitney-Gould
THAT Council approves the 2022 Budget Requests from the Recreation Commission and Vibrant
Community Commission.
CARRIED

8. NEW BUSINESS

9. REPORTS & DISCUSSIONS
R-1—INFO - Regular Report on Current Operations — CAQ Marjorie Dobson

Mavyor Daugert: Attended a MIEDS special meeting to approve Chantal Bacchus as a co-signer on the accounts to
continue doing business while Jennifer Rutt is away on medical. Attended a Northwest Regional Hospital District
meeting on Friday, ottended via teams due to distance, meeting time and being a short meeting - It was for the
final reconsideration and adoption of the budget that they did 3™ reading on. On Friday evening, attended a
North Coast Regional District Meeting, which had the 3™ reading to most of the budget requests, there were also
twe land applications — one for minor use of agricultural land reserved for non-agricuttural purposes around
having maintenance areas around the LNG pipeline between Prince Rupert and Terrace, and one associated with
the Sandspit golf course. The golf course is looking at improvements and fease of crown lands for vacation cabins
between the airport and tidal zones. Felt that they would be year-round rentals (storm watching), etc. While
there is o number of concerns of using crown land for private development it was found that there was a very
strong need in Sandspit, so quite a number of conditions were put on (8 or so), such as requirement for
environmental assessment and Council of the Haida Nation approval with this request = but with those conditions
it was passed by the North Coast Regional District. On Saturday morning, had a meeting to go over the Strategic
Plan — where they were at for accomplishing goals. Very useful meeting in that it got everyone updated and
understanding where we are at. Some areas where they are falling behind, quite a bit of time discussing the solid
island waste management plan and where it was going. What they could do but is waiting for the technical
advisory committee getting together over the next year coming up with and refining the plan to manage the
dump, both recycling and solid waste management was discussed. The Regional District is still in the air to get a
permanent headquarters, as Prince Rupert is still kicking around major development plans but nothing firm. In
the meantime, private property has become more expensive and some of it is being bought up and developed, so
the options may be shrinking, but they are keeping their eyes open on the reol estate and construction market for
opportunity. Their rental quarters are not really adequate and may lose the boardroom area. Probably must find
another space for the meetings. Briefly touched on the shoreline erosion and rip raff how to keep pressure on the
Minister of Environment and Highways to be involved in this.
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Councillor Cumming: Did not make the Special Council Meeting on the 15" but made the Recreation Meeting on
the 10'. Recreation Commission is thinking of doing something for easter, but not sure what.

Councillor Falconbridge: Attended March 15" Special Council Meeting, missed the PTAC committee (solid waste
committee), looked through their materials but nothing specific to report (there is link to the information on the
North Coast Regional District’s website). Few more meetings before they finglize what they are presenting.

Councillor Gould: With the Vancouver Isiand Regional Library, the BCGEU element of staff are on strike,
representing 12% of the workforce, creating hassles down south, we only have one member on Island. There has
been sorne entrenchment on both sides, the library board met last Friday to discuss options & where they are at,
the executive has been moving the mandate along and coming back to the regular board for feedback. Both the
BCGEU & CUPE agreed to a 2-year contract earlier this year but had 2021 as retroactive and 2022 as current. The
big challenge the library board has is that it connot change the budgets from last year and this year in a 3-year
agreement with BCGU, so it puts a lot of pressure in the 3™ year on how to negotiate. It also sets up CUPE fora
very good position as they go into their negotiation in 2022. 5o, the library board is in a bit of a predicament. NDIT
meeting on Friday, will be a phone-in. Went to the meeting at the bird tower, but the engineer was not able to
come — pressed upon Hector that the wood we have available makes it difficult to cut 2x12s, got a lot of pushback
on structural integrity {though contractors did concede that 2x8s probably can work, but they want the
engineering report) — identified that whatever plan we come up with we want to tailor it to the wood supply we
have, and that anything not in supply might take a while to get it.

Councilfor Whitney-Gould: Site visit with Kim at the swimming hole, had a look at the outhouse and put some
beautification towards it. Reconfirmed where commission planned for things to be, things are moving forward.
Attended March 15" Special Council Meeting.

2022-03-088 —Moved by Councillor Falconbridge, seconded by Councillor Whitney-Gould
THAT Council receives the written and verbal reports from Council and CAQO Marjorie Dobson.
CARRIED

10. ACTION ITEMS
11. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC & PRESS

Question-Craig Beachy, Fire Chief; More of an update rather than question — Fire Department likely to
nead a new tanker for the Fire Department, will have a formal request for the grant writer to have a
look for funding for it soon. They are watching the BC Auction for a used on (hard to find one). It is
usually $250-300,000 for a new one; last one bought used was bought for $12,000.-Something the Fire
Department is working towards.
Answer: Thank you. A plan that has some firm numbers in it would make it easier for getting
grants.

12. IN-CAMERA
2022-03-089—Moved by Councillor Cumming, seconded hy Councillor Falconbridge
THAT Council moves in-camera as per section 90(2)(a) of the Community Charter at 8:20 PM.
CARRIED

13, ADJOURNMENT
2022-03-090—Moved by Councillor Cumming
THAT Council adjourns this meeting at 8:27 PM
CARRIED

Mayor Doug Daugert CAQ Marjorie Dobson /\
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NORTH COAST

REGIONAL DISTRICY

Board Highlights

March 2022

Delegation:

Christina Jewell and Emily Peer-Groves, Owners, Dirt Nerd Soil Company, provided an
overview of the Haida Gwaii Community Compost Collection Project. The Chair of the Board
thanked Ms. Jewell and Ms. Peer-Groves for their delegation.

Board Business:

1.

The Board resolved to conditionally support a $4,000 contribution to EcoTrust Canada’s
Northwest Food Systems Policy Research project.

The Board resolved to provide a letter of support for the Oona River Resource
Association’s funding application to the Community Investment Fund to remediate the
Salt Lagoon Trail in Qona River,

The Board adopted its Local Election Bylaw, which determines various procedures and
requirements for the Saturday, October 15, 2022 Local Government Election.

The Board adopted its 2022-2026 Financial Plan Bylaw, which will guide both the Board
and staff in shaping the budget priorities for 2022 and future years. To learn more about
the NCRD's financial planning visit

The Board resolved to send a letter to support Haida Gwaii Recreation’s application to
the Gwaii Trust Society regarding youth programming in Sandspit.

The Board resolved to send a letter to the BC Minister of Fisheries, Oceans and the
Canadian Coast Guard, copying the BC Minister of Land, Water and Resource
Stewardship, requesting a just transition for those displaced due to west coast crab
reallocations.

The Board resolved to send a letter to the BC Ministry of Transportation and
Infrastructure and Northern Health asking them to investigate long processing times of
rural subdivisions and expedite the Sandspit Inn subdivision process.

On March 19, 2022 the Board held a Committee of the Whole meeting to consider 2019 —
2022 NCRD Strategic Priorities.

For complete details of NCRD Board meetings, the Agenda and Minutes are
posted online at wivro.ncrdbe.com.

North Coast Regiconal District March 2022

Board Hightights



Downburst winds from a severe storm toppled trees like this area near Red Creek Road north of Fort St John. Photo courtesy of the Northern Ternadoes Project.,

Not a tornado, but it blew just as hard

Early summer 2021 in the Peace region; residents sweltering
in days of heat approaching 40°C at times. Some were
about to witness another weather extreme of which they
had no inkling. “On June 30 at about 9 in the evening, we
were hit by a powerful storm that broke down hundreds of
trees and took out power lines,” wrote former Chetwynd
mayeor Merlin Nichals. “As | was watching from my front
porch, | thought that my survival was in question.”

A sudden, widespread wind event, that many suspected
was a tornade, knocked out power to over 6,000 BC Mydro
customers from Chetwynd and Hudson's Hope to Dawson
Creek and well north of Fort St John. Envirenment Canada
later reported what occurred was a straight-line wind event
from a powerful bow echo storm = resulting in clusters of
downbursts with embedded microbursts reaching speeds of
190 km/h.

Hardest hit may have been Red Creek Road in the Montney
area, where damage was so severe, power restoration took
many days with the last customer finally getting service
back in the late afterncon of July 6.

BC Hydro crews responded to the storm outages
immediately and some customers had their lights back on
hours later and one thousand customers were already on by
the next morning. Why other customers were without
electricity much longer was due to the extent of the
damage. “Over the past several days, we have replaced
more than 330 spans of wire, 60 cross-arms, 30 power
poles and 15 transformers,” our Media Relations department
reported. “As you can see, the damage to the electrical
system was significant.”

On Sunday, July 4, four days after the storm, one thousand
customers still needed power. While the end was now in
sight, as we expected then that everyone would be on by
Tuesday, it was not going to be easy. There were 110
outage orders to attend to with 90 of those attached ta a
single customer, meaning the 18 crews on duty were
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Downed lines from downburst winds: trees and power lines lay broken
along Highway 97 north of Charlie Lake,

waist-deep in a tangle of tree trunks, powerlines, broken
cross—arms and broken branches. On duty were both power
line technicians and certified utility arborists, working
16-hours at a time in staggered shifts ensuring repairs
would continue arcund the clock. The Blueberry River and
Halfway River communities were back on Sunday evening
with Doig River having been restored about 24 hours earlier.

Ten more crews jpined the effort the next day. Overall, help
came from Prince George, Terrace and the Lower Mainland
to supplement the local crews. We thanked our customers
for their patience and many in the rural areas spoke with
crews directly to express thanks for their hard work in the
difficult conditions.

Tuesday came and there were just a few customers to go
and zlt were energized by dinner time. The crews from out
of the region headed home, but the natural disasters were
only just getting started in a year many would like to forget.

Powered by Water

BC Hydro provides clean, reliable and affordable
electricity to British Columbians. We generate about 984
clean energy for the province, mostly from our
hydroelectric resources.

CS-1480-1
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Message from Chris O’Riley, President & CEO

Hi everyone,

BC Hydro is pleased to share our Community
Relations annual report highlighting some of our
work in your region. We're proud to serve
communities and their elected representatives in all
parts of the province.

In 2021, cur teams continued to adapt to the
COVID-19 public health emergency, while also
managing through the extreme weather such as
wildfires brought about by climate change.
Through everything, our focus remained on safely
providing you with the clean electricity that our

B.C. communities rely on.

In September 2021, we introduced our Electrification Plan, which features new programs
and incentives to help British Columbians make the switch from fossil fuels to clean
hydroelectricity to power their hames, businesses, and vehicles, We'll also help to attract
new energy-intensive industries to B.C. and offer programs to reduce the time and costs
for new custorners to get connected to our grid.

Our goal is to reduce greenhouse gas emissions in the province by 900,000 tonnes per
year by April 2026 — that's around the same as taking 200,000 gas-powered cars off
the road for one year. Our Electrification Plan outlines how we'll get there. At the same
time, we continue to help customers with conservation initiatives designed to save
energy and money.

We have also advanced affordability initiatives to help our customers save money on their
electricity bills and continued to focus on making it easier for our customers to do
business with us. We're working with the Province to strategically position 8C Hydro for
long-term success, keeping rates affordable, furthering reconciliation with Indigenous
Peoples and supporting quality economic development.

Within this report, you'll find many examples of how we're working with your
communities on a range of topics - from capital projects and corporate programs, to
initiatives ke our Electrification Plan. This report also includes some important indicators
of how we're doing in providing you with reliable power,

We'll continue to work closely with you to support your community. If you have any
questions, please contact our Cormmunity Relations representatives in your region. We'd
be pleased to help.

Sincerely,
Chris Q'Riley

President & CEQ
BC Hydro
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Quick Facts

PROVINCE-WIDE:
4 million customers

Electricity is delivered
through a network of:

approximately 80,000
kilometres of transmission
and distribution lines

1 over 300 substations

1 illion plus utility poles

NORTHERN REGICN
SUPPLY

Generating Stations Capacity:

GM Shrum 2,857 MW
Pegace Canyon 694 MW
Falls River 7 MW
Clayton Falls 2 MW
Thermal:

Fort Nelson T3 MW
Prince Rupert 46 MW
Diesel:

16 Diesels 57.7 MW

MW = megawatt




Site C update

Site C will be a third dam and hydroelectric generating station on the Peace River in northeast B.C. Construction started more
than six years ago, in July 2015.

During the sixth year of construction, activities continued to advance in all project areas, particularly the completion of both
the upstream and downstream cofferdams ahead of schedule in early 2021. The cofferdams create a dry construction area to
continue construction activities with the earthfill dam, which is now well underway. Work also advanced along the Highway
29 realignment, transmissicn line corridor and in the future reservoir area.

The project reached several milestones this past year, including:

O construction of a 2.6-killometre—long berm along the shoreline below Hudson's Hope began in October 2020

O powerhouse construction advanced and penstock installation continued; to date, steel construction for four of the six
penstock units has been completed

O the completion of roller-compacted concrete placements in the dam and core buttress, marking the end of the project's
overall roller-compacted concrete program

O work advanced on all sections of the Highway 29 realignment

O The Halfway River bricdge is substantially complete and the new alignment at Farrell Creek East opened to traffic in
October 2021

O stringing on the second of two Site C transmission lines is in
progress

O installation of steel piles is underway as part of the right bank
foundation enhancements

BC Hydro also delivered on several commitments in the region in
2021. We continued to provide grants to support non-profit
organizations in the Peace region through the Generate
Opportunities {GO) Fund; as of October 2021, $552,566 had
been distributed to 63 projects. We distributed additional funds
from our $20 million Peace Agricultural Compensation Fund;

as of March 2021, $771,319 in funding had been approved for

33 projects.

A view of the Site C dam core trench, dam buttress, powerhoyse,
For more information on Site C, please select sitecproject.com. spiliways, and the operational substation in the background.

Powering B.C.’s switch to clean electricity

With our unique advantage as a clean-energy powerhouse, British Columbians have plentiful opportunity to make the switch
to clean power.

Ninety—-eight per cent of our electricity is generated from clean or renewable resources, making us western North America’s
leader in clean electricity generation. Our hydroelectric resources, which are powered by water, give us a clean advantage to
power a greener ecanomy in B.C. ' el vt

While aimost all the electricity we produce is from clean or renewable resources, we stili have some work to do. Nearly
three-quarters of the energy used to power homes and buildings, cars and industrial operations in B.C. comes from
fossil fuels.

As we look to the future, we have an ambitious goal to do better. That's why, in September 2021, BC Hydro released our
$260 million Electrification Plan. {Electrification refers to switching from fossil fuels like gasoline, diesel and natural gas to
clean electricity.)
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Supported by our government partners, we launched a comprehensive plan that lays the foundation for how B.C.'s ¢lean
electricity can be used to power three key sectors.

0 Buildings: Almost 11 per cent of the total greenhouse gas emissions in B.C. come from residential and commercial

buildings, mostly due to heating. We've introduced new heat pump rebates and we'll connect with different levels of

government and standard-making bodies to increase energy efficiency standards to advance electrification for builders
and developers.

' Transportation: About 40 per cent of B.C.'s emissions come from cars, trucks and other transportation equipment. BC
Hydro plans to expand our fast charging network by having 325 electric vehicle charging staticns at 145 sites across the
province by the end of 2025. We'll also bring in new programs to encourage commercial fleets, including large trucks and
buses, to switch to clean electricity.

' Industry: About 40 per cent of emissions in B.C. come from the industrial sector, from things like compressors in the
natural gas sector, diesel engines in mining and forestry, and process heat in the forest products industry. Clean electricity
switching is possible for this sector too, and we’ll provide incentives to businesses. VWe're also working to attract new
clean industry to B.C,, including hydrogen production, carbon capture, synthetic fuel production and data centres.

These incentives, rebates and planning are expected to result in greenhouse gas emission reductions of 930,000 tonnes per
year by the end of fiscal 2026. That's the equivalent of taking about 200,000 gas-powered cars off the road. In the process,
we expect to add about 3,900 gigawatt hours of load to our system.

We'll also continue to support conservation efforts. Conservation and electrification go well together. it’s ultimately about
being efficient in our choices and uses of energy, including consideration of the emissions that result from fossil fuels.

In addition to reducing greenhouse gas emissions, our Electrification Plan offers the added benefit of helping us keep our
rates affordable.

Overall, electrification wilf help us ensure our province’s future will be cleaner, brighter and full of electricity. For more
information, please select behydro.com/electrificationplan.

Regional Information

W.A.C. Bennett Dam Spillway Concrete Upgrades Project

The objective of this project is to upgrade the W.A.C.
Bennett Dam spillway chute's concrete surface to ensure
continued safe operation of the spillway. Spillways are a
necessary component of water storage dams. They may be
used to manage water levels in the reservoir, to maintain
flows downstream of the darn or in emergencies, to release
water to protect the dam structure.

What is a flip bucket?

There are several types of spillways in use at
hydroelectric darms. One feature of the spillway at the
W.A.C. Bennett Damn is the flip bucket at the bottomn
end of the downsiope section of the spillway. It has a
slight upward angle to direct water upward as it
leaves the spillway to dissipate the force of the falling
water before it flows into the river downstream.

Flip bucket at WA .C. Bennett Dam.
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This project follows the Splllway Chute Upgrade Project, completed in 2016, which identified areas throughout the entire
length of the spillway chute that required improvements to assure its continued good performance and then remediated the
highest pricrity areas., The specific sections of the spillway chute to be remediated as part of this project are the next highest
priority sections In the inclined chute, both above and below the previously resurfaced area.

Due to the timing and pace of work, the upgrades will continue in the 2022 construction seascn. This was attributable to a
rmonth-long delay in the start of construction due to operational spill requirements and a lower rate of concrete demolition
than had been anticipated. The project team is satisfied with work that has been completed to date.

Before, during and after conditions of one rernediated lolnt In the spillway.

W.A.C. Bennett Dam Reservoir
Boom Replacement Project

The scope of the project includes the replacement of the
aging and deteriorating debris boom at W, A.C. Bennett
Dam with a new reservoir boom that meets both debris

interception and public safety requirements.

The existing bhoom Is a simple construction of logs and
heavy chains all linked together to form a fleating barrier
near the spiliway forebay.

The new boom will be made of galvanized steel and will
include public safety signage. New boom anchors will also
be installed as part of the project. Fabrication of the new
boom is underway and instal'ation of the new boom and
anchors is planned foTsummer 2022.

W.A.C. Bennett Dam spillway and existing debris boomn.

Peace Canyon Spillway Bay 3 & 4
Concrete Repairs Project

Completed in the surmmer of 2021, this project included the
repair of a crack in bay 3 and two spall repairs in bay 4 near
the Spillway Operating Gate sills. Spalling occurs when
fragments of concrete break off leaving an uneven surface.
if repalrs are not done in a timely manner, it could lead to
further deterioration of the spillway surface.

Example of a section of a hew debris bhoorm,
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The work location, at the top of the spillway adjacent to the
spillway gate and underneath the dam deck, is difficult to
access and required several measures to ensure the safety
of the construction personnel while performing the work, as
well as our ability to recall the spillway if needed, including:
an Interim Dam Safety Risk Management Plan, engineered
mechanical blocking and basket lifts to and from the work
location from the spillway bridge, and confined space and
fall protection procedures. Work was performed by BC
Hydro Construction Services with engineering design and

support by our Stations Maintenance Civil Engineering team.

Peace Canyon spillway operating gates,

Supporting Communities

Trees and Vegetation Management

Qur electrical systern is complex and highly efficient, with approximately 80,000 kilometres of overhead transmission
and distribution power lines throughout the province. Managing trees and plants around these lines is important for
safety and service reliability.

B.C. has some of the tallest and fastest-growing trees in North America. Qur vegetation management team regularly
inspects trees and other tall vegetation growing under or adjacent to our overhead system to identify potential problems.
Tall, diseased or dead trees can fall or grow into power lines, causing electrical cutages.

Vegetation management contractors — we employ professional arborists and foresters that follow strict environmental
guidelines — prune or remove trees and vegetation in areas where the lines may be impacted. What's more, when an
area experiences reliability issues, we assess the local distribution lines for potential tree-related causes. Even with a
proactive management program, more than half of all outages in B.C. are caused by adverse weather causing trees and
vegetation to come into contact with our system. For more information, please select behydro.com/trees.

Recreation sites

We've developed and maintain a wide range of
recreation areas as one part of our efforts to balance-the
province's energy needs with the preservation of the
natural environment.

BC Hydro reservcirs make it possible to provide clean
energy to the province. Those reservoirs also serve as
recreational sites that many people enjoy for things like
hiking, boating, camping and swimming. For more
information, please select bchy&ro.comlrecreation.

Alexander Mackenzie's Landing at sunset, located near Mackenzle,
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Community ReGreening Program

BC Hydro is proud to assist local governments through our
Community ReGreening Program which supports the
planting of trees and other vegetation that help enhance
ecological networks across the province. The program also
helps to ensure the right trees are planted near our power
lines.

Our ReGreening grants fund small-scale cormmunity
planting projects and are open to all municipal and
Indigenous Nations’ governments within BC Hydro's service
area. All new applications are now being accepted through
our online form. The deadline to apply for a 2022
ReGreening grant was January 31, 2022 and had been
extended to February 28, 2022. For more information,
please select bchydro.com/regreening.

Riverside Park Washhouse planting in Vanderhoof.

This past year, successful applications Included:

100 Mile House Beautification and Tree Replacement $4,750
Houston Highway 16 Industrial Park Beautification $4,750
Kitimat Kitimat Parks Tree Enhancement $4,480
Mackenzie Community Planting $£4,300
Pouce Coupe Village Park Tree Planting $3,360
Stewart Beautify Stewart $2,110
Telkwa Library Park Delineation/Shade Trees $2,016
Vanderhoaof Enhance Parks and Create Green Space $4,750

Beautification Fund

Our Beautification Fund provides financial assistance to municipal governments to relocate 8C Hydro equipment on public
property. We co-fund projects to move overhead lines and poles to underground duct banks as part of community
redevelopment plans or to enhance and improve the use of public spaces. Previous projects have included high traffic areas
and community venues such as town centres, parks, commercial districts, civic facilities, and bike lanes.

This past year, successful applicants for beautification projects included:
O Houston

Select bchydro.com/beautification for more information and to apply. Applications must be submitted by September 20 to
be considered for the following year.

{ BCHydro
Power smart
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Decorative Wrap Grant Program

Our Decorative Wrap Grant Program provides financial
assistance to municipal governments, regional districts and
First Nations communities looking to improve the visual
aesthetics of a neighbourhood by installing decorative wraps
on BC Hydro-owned pad-mounted equipment boxes.
Eligible applicants can receive grant funding of $350 or
$700 per unit, depending on the size of the equipment box
to be wrapped. The funding amount will be determined by

BC Hydro during the application review.

The appiication closing date for each year is September 30. Example of a decorative wrap on our pad-mounted equipment.
For more information, please select behydro.com/wraps.

Graffiti removal

Graffiti vandalism is a crime that affects everyone. BC Hydro prioritizes the rermoval of graffiti that is socially offensive (e.g.
obscenities, racial or religious slurs) as well as graffiti that is located in high-profile or sensitive areas (e.g. adjacent to schools,
churches, and community centres).

We rely on the public around B.C. to report graffiti on everything from pad-mounted transformer boxes to our buildings. As
an alternative, graffiti removal agreements offer financial support to local governments or community groups to remove
graffiti on our behalf, For more infarmation on graffiti removal agreements, please cantact your local Community Relations
office (see last page of this report).

Fish & Wildlife Compensation Program

The Fish & Wildlife Compensation Program (FWCP) is 2 partnership of BC Hydro, the B.C. Government, Fisheries and Oceans
Canada, First Nations, and public stakeholders, to conserve and enhance fish and wildlife in watersheds impacted by BC
Hydro dams.

In 2020-2021, the FWCP's Peace Region hoard approved funding for 28 projects (10 fish and 18 wildlife) across the Finlay,
Peace, Parsnip and Dinosaur sub-regions, for approximately $1.5 million.

Some of the projects funded include studying Arctic grayling in the Williston Reservoir watershed, assessing bull trout
spawning habitats, building the capacity of local First Nations to address invasive species, restoring caribou habitat and
improving calf survival through maternity penning, expanding the data collection on birds and bats, and supporting
restoration activities for amphibians.

One key project that was completed in 2021 was the
Willistan Wetland Explorer Tool. The first step in
coenserving and enhancing wetland habitat is to determine Did you know?
where it is, but the FWCP's Peace Region is approximately
7.2 million hectares, and mapping remote areas is

The FWCP is funded annually by BC Hydro. The FWCP
directs those funds towards priority actions across its three

challenging. The FWCP invested in this predicative mapping regions to fulfill its mission and work towards its vision of
tool, developed by the B.C. Ministry of Environment and thriving fish and wildlife populations in watersheds that are
Climate Change Strateqy, to predict the abundance, functioning and sustainable.

distribution, and connectivity of wetlands and riparian areas.
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The cost-effective model not only pradicts the location of
wetlands and riparian areas, but further classifies them into

types of wetland and riparian habitat.

Since 1988, the FWCP has committed more than $40
million to support fish and wildlife in its Peace Region. Learn

more at fwcp.ca.

For information on Community Engagement Grants — which
are typically $500 to $1,000 and help stewardship groups
and others take action to benefit local fish and wildlife -
please select fwcp.ca/community-engagement-grants/.

Grants-in-lieu

Monitering and maintenance are impartant to sustainlng benefits for
fish and wildlife. During F21, Blackbird Environmental inspected 53 nest
structures in the Parsnip Arm. Here, an infertile egg is removed before
fresh wood chips are added to the box. Photo courtesy of C. Coady.

WWe pay net property tax and grant payments to local governments. The grant program is a provincial government initiative
and the amounts paid are determined under the current legislation. Listed below are the grants paid to each community in

the Northern regicn as of July 1, 2021.

Municipality/District

School taxes*

Other taxes

Total payments

District of 100 Mile House

Village of Burns Lake

Central Coast Reglonal District
District of Che.twynd

City of Dawscn Creek

District of Fort 5t. James

City of Fort 5t. John
Fraser-Fort George Regional District
Village of Fraser Lake

Village of Granisle

Village of Hazelton

District of Houston

Di;trlct of Hudson's Hope
District of Kitimat

District of Mackenzie

Village of Masset

Village of McBride

District of New Hazelton
North Coast Regional District
Northern Rackies Reglional Municipality
Peace River Regiona! District
Village of Port Clements

District of Port Edward

87,368.88
41,300.43
0
62,137.64
216,027.34
30,914.15
118,254.46
0
11,566.28
10,579.92
4,097.89
110,821.05
1,674,020.45
121,579.90
80,848.54
35,039.73
29,729.75
32,790.30

0
378,573.71

o
4,750.01

143,686.07
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79,844.73
96,759.24
4,581.00
112,131.14
1,431,279.43
41,837.13
389,532.55
1,182,730.00
37,179.92
10,684.33
5,196.66
116,251.69
1,865,065.86
159,320.12
2,589,278.07
27,321.43
17,255.13
17,060,37
16,037.00
302,547.59
1,559,278.00
5,727.88

173,630.09

8.33
138.81
0
1,284.97
366.94
0

395.46

0

0

0
300.00
630.00
5,402.14
0

166.94
0.34
53.46
632.80

1,552.55

167,221.94
138,198.48
4,581.00
175,553.75
1,347,673.74
72,751.28
508,182.47
1,182,730.00
48,746.20
21,264.25
13,594.55
227,702.74
3,544,488.45
280,900.02

2,670,293.55
62,361.50
47,038.34
50,483.47
16,037.00

682,673.85
1,559,278.00
10,477.89

317,316.16
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Municipality/District

Total payments

Village of Pouce Coupe
City of Prince George

City of Princa Rupart
Village of Queen Charlotte

City of Guesnel

Town of Smithers
District of Stewart
District of Taylor

Village of Telkwa

City of Terrace

District of Tumbler Ridge
District of Vanderhoof
District of Walls

City of Williams Lake

* Local governments collect school taxes which are then forwarded to the provincial government to help fund school districts.

Community Grants

4,616.74 12,706.07
747,110.39 1,849,967.45
96,225.86 256,578.81
52,918.12 14,908.75
192,089.40 720,431.66
95,822.51 182,837.52
40,994.87 109,810,22
28,304.86 460,236.21
9,323.50 5,778.86
403,367.85 344,849.65
239,432.62 67,469.03
97,455.69 170,276.16
7,625.98 5,063.93
114,398.75 252,957.43

759.20

35,536.11
]

9,259.60
4]

0
529,99
0

1,583.00
0
248.50

17,322.81

2,597,083.43
352,804.67

68,586.07
948,057.17

278,660.03
160,064.69
488,541.07

19,102.36
748,747.49
306,901.65
269,314.85

12,689.91
364,604.58

By providing electricity to the people and businesses of this province, we provide an essential and important service. We also

believe in doing more than that: we offer two types of grants to support non-profit organizations and registered charities
that are making a difference in their communities. In 2021, we supported nearly 90 community-based projects across every

region of the province.

Qur grants are given out in three focus areas: building the workforce of tomorrow, safety education, and developing smart
energy ideas. When planning for your project, please keep in mind that our grants have set criteria and application deadlines.
To learn more, please select bchydro.com/grants.

Some of the organizations that we supported in the region this past year included:

Riske Creek Volunteer Fire Department Soclety

Horsefly Volunteer Fire Department

Mackenzie and Area Radio Society (MARS)
CHMM 103.5 FM

MclLeese Lake Volunteer Fire Department Society

The Air Cadet League of Canada, 899 Vanderhoof
Sponsoring Committee

Mackenzie Public Library

Electrical Back-up

Traffic Control Initiative

Broadcast Infrastructure Upgrades

Emergency Scene Lighting

Outdoor Adventure Training and

Leadership Program

Tech Lending Library
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Riske Creek and Hwy
20

Horsefly

Mackenzie and
Macl.eod Lake

McLeese Lake

Vanderhoof

Mackenzie

§2,000

$1,750

$2,000

$2,000

§2,000

$2,000
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Gavin Lake Forest Education Soclety 2021 Grade 6 Fall School Program Williams Lake $2,000
Bulkley Valley Collaborative Learning Society Flow Learning Lab STEM Camps Bulkley Valley $2,000
(BVCLS)

Fort St. John Public Library Association 2021 Summer Reading Program Fort 5t. John $2,000

Reliability Performance [ﬁug

We recognize how important the reliable supply of electricity is to our customers. We'll continue to improve, reinforce and
maintain the electrical system.

The inforrmation below provides a comparison between Fiscal 2020 and Fiscal 2021 for communities in the Northern region.
These statistics include interruptions due to planned outages.

Fiscal 2020 Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2020 Fiscal 2021
average customer average customer average number of average number
interruption duration | interruption duration interruptions per of interruptions
(hours) {hours) customer per customer
100 Mile House 1.56 2.42 3.43 4.72
Atlin 0.85 3.72 1.55 6.88
Burns Lake 3.07 3.22 10.80 3.20
Chetwynd 241 2,98 3.65 5.97
Dawson Creek 2.20 1.75 371 3.88
Fort Nelson 7.52 .53 6.09 3.93
Fort 5t. James 2.99 3.34 13.99 5.50
Fort St. John 2.29 2.91 3.90 2.08
Fraser Lake 271 1.31 4.49 1.75
Granisle 2.72 3.54 6.76 3.36
Hazeltan 1.95 4.60 3.49 4.95
Houston i 1.88 2.62 189 3.99
Hudson's Hope 1.75 2.77 2.73 4.54
Kitimat 3.02 7.47 4.03 4.83
Mackenzie 2.26 3.81 6.26 1.68
Masset 1.10 1.77 4.42 6.12
McBride 0.49 4.85 6.21 11.57
New Hazelton 1.61 5.66 4.94 3.06
Port Clements 2.28 3.49 12.05 20.07
Pouce Coupe 1.68 1.50 2.40 1.35
Prince George 1.94 3.51 2,45 1.58
Prince Rupert .14 2.66 2.58 3.50
Gueen Charlotte 2,30 2.33 11.74 14.83
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Community Fiscal 2020 Fiscal 2021 Fiscal 2020 Fiscal 2021

average customer average customer average number of average number
interruption duration | interruption duration interruptions per of interruptions
{hours) {hours) customer per customer
Guesnel 2.26 2.16 3.08 3.06
Smithers 1.57 3.84 6.80 4.32
Stewart 9.51 6.22 7.07 141.86
Taylor 1.36 1.89 2.49 1,19
Telkwa 1.20 2.93 5.64 5.07
Terrace 2.78 3.58 4.69 .21
Tumbler Ridge 1.81 1.48 2.51 3.87
Vanderhoof 1.85 2.56 11.74 3.08
Wells 5.88 3.76 9.44 16.26
Williams Lake 2.98 2.32 4.18 4.28
12 COMMUNITY RELATIONS 2021 ANNUAL REPORT - NORTHERN //l/



BC Hydro Community Relations

At BC Hydro we build strong relationships to support the unique needs and strengths of the communities we serve. Our
Community Relations team does this by listening, providing information and working together with communities. We're the
point of contact for local government, media, local business and community groups. Whether it's for capital projects,
corporate initiatives and programs, local BC Hydro activities, significant planned cutages, emergency response or unplanned
power outages, we work hard to meet the needs of our stakeholders and ensure communities are kept informed,

Northern Region

If you have questions or comments for us, please contact:

Bob Gammer Dave Mosure

Manager, Northern Community Relations Community Relations Coocrdinator
250 561 4858 250 561 4906
bob.gammer@bchydro.com dave.mosure@bchydro.com

BC Hydro Guide for Local Government

Quick access to key information on behydro.com

My Hydro and Energy Savings initiatives

My Hydro Log in to manage your account,

behydro.com/myhydro/

Energy Savings Programs Learn how you can be smart with your power. Take advantage of rebates
bechydro.com/energysavings and programs.

Capital Projects Learn more about major projects taking place in your region.

behydra.com/projects

Beautification Fund Find out more about our beautification program that provides financial

behydro.com/beautification assistance to municipal governments for conversion of overhead to
underground facilities.

Decorative Wrap Grant Program Learn about our program that provides financial assistance to municipal

behydro.com/wraps governments looking to install decorative wraps on BC Hydro pad-mounted
equipment boxes.

Community ReGreening Program The regreening program assists municipalities with urban tree planting while

behydro.com/regreening helping to make sure appropriate trees are planted arcund power lines.

Community Giving

Grants for community groups - Learn about our grants for community groups and how to apply for them,

behydre.com/grants

Scholarships & Endowments We look to build the next generation of engineers, electricians, and many

behydro.com/scholarships other key roles who will help us deliver clean energy to our customers. Learn

about our scholarships and endowments.
Electric vehicles

Fast charging stations Learn more about how clean and affordable power makes B.C. a great fit for
behydro.com/fev electric vehicles.

Report an outage

How to report a power outage Check the outage map or list to see if we know your power is out. If not, call
behydro.com/outages us at 1 BOO BCHYDRO {1 BOO 224 9376) or *"HYDRO (*49376} on your mobile
phone to report it.

Report graffitl
How to report graffiti on our equipment We rely on the public to report graffiti on everything frorm our
bchydro.com/graffiti pad-mounted transformer boxes to our offices.

-+

& BCHyd
facebeook.com/behydno o @bchydro @ instagram.com/bchydro o youtube.com/bchydro w Y ro

Power smart

11 COMMUNITY RELATIONS 2021 ANNUAL REPORT = NORTHERN

1%



L

UCLUELET

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
March 25, 2022

DISTRICT OF UCLUELET BANS PLASTIC AND BIO-PLASTIC UTENSILS

Taking the next step towards the responsible stewardship of the lands we are grateful to operate
within, the District of Ucluelet bans single-use plastic utensils.

UCLUELET, B.C. - On March 15, 2022 District of Ucluelet Council adopted Single-Use item
Regulation Amendment Bylaw No. 1298, 2022 which adds Plastic and Bio-Plastic Utensils to the list of
items being regulated within the municipality.

On July 26, 2021 Ministerial Order M309, provided municipalities the authority to make a bylaw
to regulate, prohibit and impose requirements in relation to the protection of the natural environment.

The District of Ucluelet, situated in the traditional territory of the Yuulu?it?ath acknowledges that
the relationship the Yuulu?if?ath have to the land and surrounding sea, goes deeper than the typical land
use issues encountered by a municipality. With this in mind, we are committed to the respectful
and responsible stewardship of its natural resources and to the preservation of the local environment
for future generations to come. As such, it is with pride that we bring into effect a ban on plastic utensils.

As defined in Ministerial Order M309, the word utensil “includes a spoon, fork, knife, chopstick or
stir stick”. Enforcement of the ban on plastic utensils will come into effect on September 15,
2022, allowing a six-month transitional time-period for the business community to adjust their
current practices, educate staff, use up any existing stocks of plastic utensils they may have on hand, and
source out appropriate and available product alternatives. During this six-month transitional time-
period, staff will continue to work with to ensure their “Cut the Cutlery”
campaign becomes a familiar and welcome addition to our business and residential community.

“With the recent ban of plastic utensils in our neighbouring municipality, we are proud to take
this next step in empowering our West Coast communities to transition to a culture of
environmental protection and stewardship. We are extremely grateful for the support of Surfrider
Pacific Rim, as we roll-out an awareness campaign that will encourage behavioural change and help
businesses prepare for, comply with, and communicate the upcoming requirements to their staff,
customers, and visitors to the area.” said Paula Mason, District of Ucluelet’s Manager of Corporate
Services.

“Collaboration is the key to creating a culture shift with single-use plastic items. The local businesses,
the District of Ucluelet, and the residents have all been so supportive of this initiative. We are very
grateful

District of Ucluelet Life on the Edge
(250} 726-7744 « info@ucluelet.ca * www.ucluelet.ca
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for all the work everyone has done to create this positive change in behavior. The tides are turning on
eliminating single-use items so let's keep the momentum going for the sake of the health of our bodies
and the ocean!" Laurie Hannah, Chapter Coordinator, Surfrider Pacific Rim.

As shown on the Government of BC's website page, the
District of Ucluelet will be one of the first municipalities in British Columbia to regulate all single-use items
suggested in the July 2021 Ministerial Order. The continued regulation of these items (and future items)

by our Council, supports the ongoing efforts of CleanBC's as well as initiatives brought
forth in the District of Ucluelet’s recently adopted and
. Visit our to read the background on the development of the Single-Use Item

Regulation Bytaw.

“The lands of the Yuulu?it?ath and the District of Ucluelet are very closely linked, in that we all share close
ties to the area’s forests, waters and natural resources. Placing a ban on plastic utensils and other single-
use items, is a huge step towards doing everything in our power to protect and preserve these lands. In
doing so, we aim to create the type of sustainable community our citizens can enjoy for future generations
to come. We truly appreciate all the support we've already seen from our business and residential
community and look forward to sharing this common goal with all who visit our region.” said Mayco Noel,
Mayor, District of Ucluelet.

About Ucluelet

A true West Coast working harbour, home to approximately 2,000 residents, Ucluelet is a place rich in
tradition and natural beauty. Located at the entrance to Barkley Sound on the West Coast of Vancouver
Island, just south of the Long Beach unit of the Pacific Rim National Park Reserve, Ucluelet is on the edge
of the Wild Pacific Ocean. It offers visitors and residents the opportunity to live in and explore one of the
world's most pristine coastlines.

About Surfrider Pacific Rim

=7

Surfrider Pacific Rim is dedicated to the protection and enjoyment of the world’s ocean,
/ waves, and beaches, for all people, through a powerful activist network. Living seaside
A or landlocked, regenerating this blue planet is essential for all of humanity to thrive.
SURFRIDER Surfrider’s focus is divided into 3 pillars: eliminating single-use plastics, finding the end-
FTPATIE of-life solutions for hard to recycle petroleum products, as well as engaging youth,
PACIFIC RIM.BC  individuals, businesses, local First Nations, and government in their Ocean Friendly
initiatives. Through their “beach to boardroom” systems approach, they address the
root of the plastics pollution crisis with the vision of achieving clean water and healthy beaches. Through
this approach, Surfrider has removed over 50 metric tonnes of marine debris from the West Coast,

supported the implementation of plastic bans, and achieved numerous coastal victories.

For Media Inquires contact:

Samantha McCullough
District of Ucluelet

smccullough@ucluelet.ca
250-726-7744

District of Ucluelet Life on the Edge
{250) 726-7744 + info@ucluelet.ca * www.ucluelet.ca
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‘qy(' northern health

the northern way of caring

INFORMATION BULLETIN

For Immediate Release
March 29, 2022

Ongoing COVID-19 vaccine opportunities in
Northern BC

Northern BC residents will have ongoing opportunities to get vaccinated against
COVID-19, as community pharmacies and Northern Health vaccine clinics work
together to improve and maintain immunization rates in the region.

BC pharmacies are playing an even bigger role in delivering vaccines as part of the
Province’s ongoing immunization campaign against COVID-19 and are now the
primary option for immunization for people age 12 and oider. Community pharmacies
in twelve northern communities are offering both the Moderna and Pfizer vaccines,
and will be providing the Novavax vaccine when it is available in BC.

For immunizations for children 5 to 11 years of age, and in those communities
without a pharmacy offering vaccines for those age 12 and older, Northern Health
will continue to offer COVID-19 vaccine appointments at regularly scheduled clinics.
Clinics will continue to be carefully planned based on vaccine registrations and
appointment bookings.

Eligible individuals who are registered with the Get Vaccinated system will see a list
of participating pharmacies and (or) Northern Health vaccine clinics, when they
receive their invitation to book a vaccine appointment. The NH website is the most
up to date source for information on current clinic schedules and locations. For more
information, visit: https://www.northernhealth.ca/health-topics/covid-19-
immunization-clinics

Media Contact: NH media line — 877-961-7724
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March 22, 2022
Ref: 269899

Mayors and Regional District Chairs
Attendees of the March 2022 Regional Meetings with Minister Nathan Cullen, Minister Lisa Beare, and
Minister Josie Osborne

Dear Mayors and RD Chairs:

Thank you for taking the time to join Minister Nathan Cullen, Minister Lisa Beare, and Minister Josie
Osborne for the March 2022 regional meetings. As Minister Cullen indicated when he affirmed his desire
to continue these meetings, they have proven to be a great opportunity to hear about key issues and
initiatives in your communities and for you to hear from each other and share your experiences.

The timing of these meetings could not have been planned better for the hand-off from Minister
Osborne to the new Minister of Municipal Affairs, Honourable Nathan Cullen, who took the helm of
Municipal Affairs on February 25™,

Minister Cullen is committed to continuing to meet with local elected leaders on a regular basis. If there
are particular topics or themes you would like to have covered in future meetings, please share these
via email to MUNI.Minister@gov.bc.ca by Friday, April 15, 2022.

On behalf of Minister Osborne, I would like to thank all of you for your support during her time as
Minister of Municipal Affairs, and | know that she is looking forward to working with you in her new role
as Minister of Land, Water, and Resource Stewardship and Minister Responsible for Fisheries. Many of
you shared with Minister Cullen that he has big shoes to fill, and he very much looks forward to
connecting with you individually and collectively in the weeks and months ahead.

The March 2022 meetings were focused on connectivity. Qur government recognizes that access to
reliable high-speed internet and cellular connectivity for British Columbians is more important than ever
before. Minister Beare gave feedback on some initiatives that had been requested as well as pointing to
new funding announced on March 8.

Connectivity Information and Updates

As promised in the calls, here are links to information provided by Minister Beare related to
connectivity. This includes new resources for local governments, planning tools and an interactive map
that shows announced projects funded in part by the Province.

Ministry of Municipal Affairs Local Government Mailing Address Location:
PO Box 9490 Stn Prov Govt 6th Floor, BOO Johnson Street
Victoria 8C vBwW 9N7 Victoria BC VBW 1N3

Phone: 250 356-6575
Fan: 250 387-7973 www.gov,bc.ca/muni
&
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tn addition, we are pleased to share the announcement of a federal and provincial joint funding
agreement of 5830 million to connect the remaining underserved rural and Indigenous communities in
B.C. by 2027, including the 5289 million announced as part of Budget 2022. This funding partnership is
great news for these households that will be able to look forward to connectivity projects in their
community. Work on the new program has started with the Request to Participate available on 5C Bid
(Number 13183). We would encourage those in underserved rural and Indigenous communities to have
a look and to consider providing feedback.

We will also hold information sessions on the Request to Participate process for local government;

e The Regional Connectivity Knowledge Network will host a technical session with CAQs and staff on
March 30", Look for information on the session in UBCM's The Compass.

e FElected officials will be invited to join Minister Beare on April 8% to discuss the announcement and
opportunities under the new Connecting Communities BC program. Invitations will be sent directly
via email.

If you have any questions about any of these sessions, please email the Connectivity team at the
Ministry of Citizens’ Services.

COVID-19 Update

Changes to Provincial Restrictions

Provincial Health Officer Dr. Bonnie Henry recently announced changes to provincial COVID-19
restrictions because of B.C.'s lowered hospitalization and transmission rates. Masks are no longer
required in public indoor settings by public health. Wearing a mask is a personal choice.

Masks are encouraged on public transit and BC Ferries, but not required. Individual businesses and
event organizers can choose to continue requiring masks on their premises. Masks are still required for
federally regulated travel, like air travel, There are no restrictions on worship service capacity and
overnight camps for children and youth are allowed, There are no visitor limits at long-term care and
seniors' assisted living facilities.

-

When K-12 schools return from , masks will no longer be required for students, staff, and
visitors.

On April 8, 2022, at 12:01 am, further restrictions will be lifted:
will no longer be required to access businesses, events, and services. Individual

businesses and event organizers can choose to continue requiring proof of vaccination for entry. Proof
of vaccination is still required for federally regulated travel, like air travel,

Businesses will no longer need a COVID-19 safety plan. They must follow communicable disease
guidance from WorkSafeBC. Proof of vaccination will no longer be required for post-secondary student
housing.
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Budget 2022 Highlights

On February 22, 2022, Finance Minister Selina Robinson tabled the 2022 provincial budget in the
Legislature. Budget 2022 makes the choices needed to build a stronger BC and make life better for
people by investing in our economic, environmental, and social strengths.

The Ministry of Municipal Affairs has three objectives coming out of Budget 2022 as included in our
Service Plan:

® Strong, sustainably governed communities

e Economic recovery beyond the COVID-19 pandemic

s Vibrant, inclusive communities that are welcoming to newcomers

Budget 2022 includes significant new funding commitments of interest to local governments including
emergency preparedness and disaster recovery, climate action, homelessness, and connectivity. More
information can also be found on the UBCM website.

o Emergency Preparedness & Recovery - investments to improve operations at EMBC and the River
Forecast Centre as well as a proactive, year-round service model for BC Wildfire Services that will
boost emergency preparedness, and support flood recovery in affected communities. This includes:

o funds to help communities build critical infrastructure back better after the disastrous
weather events in 2021,

o new funding to the Community Emergency Preparedness Fund to support emergency
management and preparedness, and

o 590 million allocated in 2021/2022 to complete FireSmart initiatives.

e Climate Action - investing 51 billion in new funding for implementing the province’s climate action
strategies, CleanBC and the Roadmap to 2030. This includes:

o establishing a new $76 million Local Government Climate Action Program, administered by
the Climate Action Secretariat at the Ministry of Environment to help local governments
take action to reduce emissions and prepare for and adapt to climate change.

o The tocal Government Climate Action Program will be operational in Spring of 2022. More
information on program specifics will be released in the coming weeks.

o 530 million in grants to local governments to improve active transportation infrastructure.

e Homelessness - investing $633 million over three years to expand homelessness services and wrap
around support services, including:
o complex care housing to over 20 sites that will suppart up to 500 people with severe mental
health, substance abuse issues, or traumatic and acquired brain injuries.

# Housing — investing an additional $166 million over three years to accelerate progress towards
building 114,000 affordable housing units in communities across BC.
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e Budget 2022 also included significant investments in forestry, mental health and substance abuse,
reconciliation, tourism, and childcare.

Funding Opportunities

CleanBC Communities Fund

The third intake for the ICIP CleanBC Communities Fund is now open for applications until May 25,
2022, at 3:00 pm PST. This intake supports projects starting in 2023 and must be completed by March
2027. Program information can be found lzre.

The CleanBC Communities Fund is a collaboration between the BC Ministry of Environment and Climate
Change Strategy and the Ministry of Municipal Affairs in close partnership with Infrastructure Canada.
Please email to get connected to a program team member who can respond to your
fquestions.

Strengthening Communities’ Services Program

The second intake for the Strengthening Communities’ Services Program is open and will accept
applications until April 22, 2022. This means that communities can continue to respond to peoples’
unique needs, especially those who are most vulnerable.

The fund is open to all local governments and modern Treaty Nations to support unsheltered homeless
populations and address community impacts caused by COVID-19. For the second intake, the program
guidelines have been updated to clarify that supports to address extreme weather events, such as
temporary warming and cooling centers, are eligible for funding. Although these services were eligible
during the program’s first intake, the guidelines did not specifically mention them. UBCM is
administering the program on behalf of the Province. For more information visit the

Community to Community Forums [C2C)

Community to Community Forum funding is again available this year for First Nations and local
governments to gather for dialogue to build on opportunities, support reconciliation efforts, resolve
issues of common responsibility, interest or concern, and advance tangible outcomes.

Since 1999, the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Indigenous Services Canada have provided funding for
the C2C program. In this time, more than 680 C2C Forums have been held in communities across the
province. Funding permitting, the C2C program can contribute a maximum of 100% of the cost of
eligible activities — to a maximum of $5,000.00. Communities can apply to more than one intake and a
“forum” doesn’t have to be one stand-alone event. For example, a forum can be a re-occurring series of
meetings.

(s
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Application Deadlines:

April 8, 2022, for events between April 22, 2022, and March 31, 2023

September 2, 2022, for events between September 26, 2022, and March 31, 2023
December 2, 2022, for events between January 1 and March 31, 2023

| appreciate you communicating back information from the Province to your councils and boards, to
your local government staff, and to your communities. The next regional meetings will be in May, and
Minister’s Office staff will be in contact with you about the date, time, and meeting information.

Sincerely,

() Brestias

Jessica Brooks
AfAssistant Deputy Minister

pc: Chief Administrative Officers
Laurey-Anne Roodenburg, President, UBCM
Gary Maclsaac, Executive Director, UBCM
Candace Witkowskyj, Executive Director, LGMA
Todd Pugh, Executive Director, Civicinfo BC
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Date: March 22, 2022

ATTN: Mayor Douglas Daugert
36 Cedar Ave West,

Port Clements, BC

VOT 1RO

RE: REMOVAL OF TELUS PAYPHONE(S) AT Bayview Market, Port Clements BC.,
Dear: Mayor Douglas Daugert,

As an agent acting on behalf of TELUS Communications Inc., WiMacTel sends this communication to you, in
compliance with CRTC decision 2004-47 Sections 56 to 66, to provide notice that the last payphone in Port
Clements will be removed on or after April 25, 2022. This is due to the decline in usage.

Notification of the removal has been posted on the payphone iocated at Bayview Market. We request that you
post this notice in your local newspaper or newsletter. Please contact WiMacTel Canada Inc., at 1-844-825-
B481 with any questions you may have about these removals.

if you still require a public phone to be available in your community after the above date, we recommend
reaching out to TELUS Business Solutions 1o discuss purchase and installation of a business phone and line or
discuss alternative solutions. The Business Wireline team of TELUS Business Solutions can be reached at
1-877-352-0898. :

Regards,

Andy Rasimas
WiMacTel Canada Inc.
On Behalf of TELUS Communications

(//\0



BRITISH
COLUMBIA

March 28, 2022 Ref: 117088

Dear Mayors, Chairs, and Chief Administrative Officers:

[ am writing to invite you to join me and Parliamentary Secretary for Rural Development, Roly
Russell in a roundtable discussion regarding our Government’s plans to expand internet services
to all rural areas of B.C. with internet speeds of less than 50/10 Mbps. This call will be an
opportunity to discuss the details of the new Connecting Communities BC program and may be
of particular interest to local governments in areas of the province that are underserved, but all
are welcome.

I had the privilege of engaging with many of you who attended the March local mayors and
regional district representatives virtual meeting with my colleagues Honourable Josie Osborne
and Honourable Nathan Cullen, Minister of Municipal Affairs, where we were able to share
information on connectivity investments to date, including the $289 million announced in the
Province’s Budget 2022, On March 8, the Goy crnments of British Columbia and Canada
announced a_ partnership to inyest up to $830 million to support connectivity infrastructure
projects that will improve access to high-speed internet for underserved rural communities and
First Nations in B.C. Our goal is to maximize these funds and expand high-speed internet
services to every household in the province by 2027,

This is exciting news, but we know the areas left that require expansion are more challenging
and it will take all levels of government and service providers to work together to make
connectivity a reality for all British Columbians.

We want to move quickly and efficiently to make the most of every dollar and finish the job we
started. That work has begun as we prepare for our first Connecting Communities BC program
intake this the summer. As such, we have launched a Request to Participate (RTP) process which
is an opportunity for the Province to obtain regional and market information, validate cost
assumptions, and gauge potential market interest in providing connectivity services to
underserved regions of the province. The RTP is listed publicly on BC Bid, ltem 13183. We
encourage you to input into this process; however, please note that it is not essential to do this,
nor is this part of an application or intake process.

A2
Minisiry of Citizens” Services Office of the Minster Mailing Address Locaunon: Room 151
PO Box 9068 S Prov Parkament Buildings Victora
Govt Victora BC VAW B VHV XS
21:2

Phone: 250 J87-9699



Mayors, Chairs, and Chief Administrative Officers
Page 2

On our April 8 call, | will share details about the launch of our Connecting Communities BC
program and how our new community-focused approach will benefit your regions. | would like
to hear from you on how we can best work together through this new program to connect the
remaining underserved areas of rural B.C. to high-speed internet services, and how we can help
you work more effectively with service providers in your area.

An invitation for a virtual meeting on April 8 will be sent shortly. [ hope you will be able to join
the conversation. If you have any questions prior to the session, please do not hesitate to reach
out to Ministry stafl in the Connectivity Division.

Together, | am confident we can identify collaborative options to advance connectivity to all
communities in B.C., and [ very much look forward to the opportunity to connect with you again.

Sincerely,

re e

Lisa Beare
Minister

pc:  Roly Russell
Parliamentary Secretary for Rural Development

Connected Communities
communityinsights g sov.be.ca

L/
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Owned by our 173 members, the MIABC is a non-profit reciprocal exchange that insures aimost &8
80% of BC's local governments. '

Ou_r'":mission 1S to provide dependable support that helps keep communities vibrant and
alive, through stable liability and property insurance, outreach programs, and expert advice.

Our guiding principles reflect how our organization, staff, and members work to
deliver the promise of our mission and the potential of our vision:
» Membership has both benefits and responsibilities.
We serve everymember equally and uniquely.
Our principles precede profit.
From partnership, comes pawer.
Qur vision is a province in which communities not only have

the means to grow, but also the freedom to thrive, enriching
the lives of British Columbians in the process.
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One measure of an organization's success is
its ability to respond to change. 2021 was a
year like no other. From ongoing pandemic
uncertainty to leadership changes to extreme
weather events, the MIABC faced change and
adversity on many levels.

How did the MIABC respond to these myriad
challenges? The answer is found in this year’s
Annual Report theme: adapt, evolve, advance.

Adapting to Leadership Changes

in the summer, our long-time CEQ Tom Barnes
anncunced that he would retire in 2022. Two
months later, Board Chair Charles Hamilton .
{our longest-standing director) retired from

the board. These changes are significant;

Tom and Charles both played integral roles

in the MIABC's development. With their
departure, the MIABC stands to lose decades
of institutional knowledge. Fortunately, careful
succession planning ensures our organization's
ongoing ability to flourish.

At the board level, succession planning
requires both foresight and flexibility. We
have developed minimum qualifications so
that every director joins us with the requisite
expertise to oversee a financial institution. We

Chairperson’s Letter

have also spent time training board members
in different areas of responsibility. Finally,
through a focus on good governance, we have
developed a robust set of policies and practices
that guide our decision-making processes.
While nothing can replace Charles Hamilton's
27 years' experience, | have extraordinary
confidence in our current board members.
Each of them brings key insights, diverse
perspectives, skills, and knowledge to the
board table.

At the management level, a Succession
Committee has worked with Tom Barnes

and outside consuitants to deliver a smooth
leadership transition. Tom's impact on the
evolution of the MIABC cannot be overstated.
Our CEO since 2006, Tom's involvement with
our organization dates back to the MIABC's
creation in 1987, when he was appointed
Claims Advisor. Tom played a key part in each
stage of the MIABC's development, and | credit
his leadership for our transformation into the
sophisticated entity you see today. While Tom's
absence will be deeply felt, one of his key
strengths has been hiring skilled professionals
and developing them into highly competent
leaders. As a result, he leaves behind an
effective and experienced management team.

Evolving to Better Serve our Members

In these pages, you will read how the MIABC
not only adapted this year, but also evolved,

emerging a stronger organization, even more
committed to meeting our members' needs.

The team took an all-hands-on-deck approach
to maintaining and even enhancing its
trademark outstanding service levels. | was
particularly impressed by staff's response

to the Lytton fire and the November floods.
Watching local governments experience these
devastating events, our staff were keenly
focused on what they could do to better

(/B



MIABC 2021 ANNUAL REPORT / CHAIRPERSON'S LETTER 3

serve our members. The Response Ready
initiative — in which the MIABC will focus on
providing strategic support to members during
catastrophic events - was born.

Advancing Growth Through Long-Term
Stability

Disruption and change can provide new
opportunities for advancement. Our biggest
story this year is the tremendous growth of the
Property and Ancillary Insurance Program.

| applaud the hard work of the Insurance
Department in responding to the remarkable
demand from prospective members. An
income strearn that did not exist eight years
ago is now a maijor contributor to the success
and stability of our organization. The team
has worked diligently to seize this immense
opportunity.

This success story was a long time in the
making. The MIABC has always prioritized
stable rates. In fact, we were created in 1987
in order to insulate members from market
volatility. In previous years, when the insurance
market was softer, our attractive suite of risk
management tools kept our membership
steady, despite other insurers offering cut-rate
prices. Now that we are in a prolonged hard
market, we are prepared to capitalize on our
stable rates. We have developed the capacity
to do so by careful attention to building capital,
prudent underwriting decisions, and good
relations with our reinsurers.

Recognition and Thanks

In closing, | would like to recognize
our members, all of whom have faced
unprecedented challenges this year. From the

heat dome to the wildfires to the floods, | do not

believe a single member has been unaffected
by climate change. Meanwhile, our members

have navigated the reopening of services
irplementation of the vaccine passports, and
closures surrounding the Omicron variant. |
have no doubt that our members have adapted,
evolved, and advanced in the face of these
challenges.

I must applaud our management and staff.
Thanks to their tremendous efforts, we are
positioned to succeed amidst a changing
environment in the years ahead. Through their
work to adapt and evolve, they have advanced
the way we operate: the MIABC is nimble

and increasingly responsive to the needs of
our member communities. Along the way,
they have remained committed to our vision,
mission, and guiding principles.

Finally,  extend sincere thanks to Charles
Hamilton and Tom Barnes for their many years
of outstanding service. These two leaders are
leaving our organization well-poised to take on
the next set of challenges.

Gl

Roy Scott
Chairperson
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Board of Directors

Our Board of Directors includes elected officials and staff representatives from member
communities. Directors are elected by our members at the MIABC's Annual General
Meeting. Each of our directors brings with them a unique perspective and wealth of
expertise - both of which are essential to the MIABC's ongoing success.

Back row (standing), left to right: First row (sitting), left to right: Not pictured:
Lance Kayfish Stephanie Munro Mayor Jack Crompton
DIRECTOR AT LARGE. CITY OF KELOWNA et T MLGA REPRESENTATIVE
1ESORT MUNICIPALITY OF WHISTLER
Steffan Klassen Councillor Myers Bennett .
GROUP C REPRESENTATIVE, TOWN OF CRESTON qE e eRIC Councillor Gord Klassen
NECLGA REPRESENTATIVE, €/TY OF FORT §T JOHN
Stuart Horn Director Penny Cote
REGIONA; DISTRICT REPRESENTATIVE & RESERITAT e Clay Nelson
REGIONAL DISTRICT OF CEHTRAL KOOTENAY DI MRECTOR AT LARGE. IMSTRICT OF WESY VANCOUVER
Chair Rob Gay Karen Grormmada Roy Scott
AKBLG REPRESENTATIVE GROUP [ REPRESENTATIVE, CITY OF PORT COQUITLAM  GROUP A REPRESENTATIVE
REQIONAL DISTRICT OF EAST KOOTENAY DISTRICT OF 100 MILE HOUSE
Lance Bredeson
DIRECTOR AT LARGE, CITY OF RICHMOND Sheryl Worthing

DIRECTOR AT LARGE, VILLAGE OF BURNMS LAKE

Councillor Ruth Hoyte
SILGA REPRESENTATWE. DISTRICT OF COLDSTREAM

b



MIABC 2021 ANNUAL REPPORT / BOARD OF DIRECTORS 5

2021 Committees

Executive Committee Governance Committee
Roy Scott cHAIR Lance Kayfish cHAIR

Lance Kayfish vICE CHAIR Gord Klassen VICE CHAIR
Karen Grommada Lance Bredeson

Gord Klassen Rab Gay

Clay Nelson Sheryl Worthing
Finance/Audit Committee Member Services Committee
Karen Grommada CHaR Gord Klassen cHar

Lance Kayfish VICE CHAIR Sheryl Worthing vICE CHAIR
Penny Cote Myers Bennett

Stuart Horn Rob Gay

Steffan Klassen Ruth Hoyte

Stephanie Munro
Tom Barnes

Claims Committee
Clay Nelson cCHAIR
Steffan Klassen vICE CHAIR
Myers Bennett
Jack Crompton
Ruth Hoyte

Karen Grommada

Board Changes

N 2021, the MIABC bid tarewell to Charies Hamilton,
our longest-standing board mermber. Mrdiamilton
served 27 years as a director, includingthelpast three
as Board Chair,

Mr. Hamilton was succeeded by Roy ScottiasiBoard
Chair. Mr. Scott, the CAC of 100 Mile House, joined the
MIABC's hoard In 2016 and nas servedias Chair of the
Governance Committee since 2018, MriScottihas
extensive experience with local governmentrisk pools,

having served as board chair in developiRg'a municipa:
insurance exchange for the municipalities ofithe
Northwesl Territories.

In the: fall, the board welcomed Stephanie Munio,
Director of Financial Services for the District of North
Saanich, as a Directer at Large.
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Statf Directory

ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT

\ Y 4

Tom Barnes Leigh Latchford Heidi Scribner Claudia Chan Hilda Strohan
CHIEF EXECUTIVE HUMAHN RESOURCES ADMINISTRATOR & ADMIHSTRATIVE OFFICE SERVICES
OFFICER MANAGER BOARD SECRETARY  SERVICES MANAGER ASSISTANT

FINANCE DEPARTMENT

Maria Creighton Pritika Pratap Henry Zhang
CHIEF FINANCIAL ACCOUNTANT ACTOUNTANT
OFFICER

MEMBER SERVICES DEPARTMENT

2
&

Megan Chorlton Tony Lin Sandra Mayo Jacinta Wu
DIRECTOR OF RISK KMAHAGEMENT RISK MANAGEMENT RiSK MANAGEMENT
MEMBER SERVICES & DATA ANALYST SPECIALIST ADVISOR

GEMERAL COUNSEL

INSURANCE DEPARTMENT

Glenn McLaughlin -~ Nicole Purves Marina Sen Erica Shi
I'AECTOR OF DEFUTY DIRECTOR OF  INSURANCE SERVICES NSURANCE
IS URANCE INSURANCE COORDINATOR PROGRAMS

ADMINISTRATOR
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CLAIMS DEPARTMENT

Sherman Chow David Tupper David Hooper  Michelle Stewart Kevin Travis
DIRECTOR OF CLAIMS CLAIME & RISK CLAMS EXAMINER CLAIME EXAMINEH CLAIMS EXAMINER
ANALYST

LEGAL DEPARTMENT

!Jhﬁ;

<V

Maryam Sherkat  SamanthaBoyce  Steven Gares Dana Romanick Jordan Brian Lee
CHIEF RISK OFFICER &  ASSISTANT GEMERAL LEGAL COUNSEL LEGAL COAMISE Hauschildt LEGAL COUNSEL
LEGAL COUNSEL COUNSEL LEGAL COUNSEL

Annglee Judy Yee
Diguangco LEGAL
LEGAL ADMINISTRATIVE
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT

ASSISTANT

tatt Changes __

year marked the retirement of Susan Ackerman, the MIABC's longstanding Risk
ement Advisor.

lacement, Jacinta Wu, joined us in mid-July. Jacinta started her insurance career
> years ago, before moving to various commercial lines positions on the
e of the business,

ed two new lawyers to our Legal Department. Brian Lee joined the MIABC in
has five years' experience practising insurance defence law. Jordan
on board in April 2021. Based in Nanaimo, Jordan is mainly responsible for
; against MIABC members located on Vancouver Island.
S
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ADAPT

in the midst of a challenging year, the MIABC demonstrated a capacity to react effectively to external
changes, while staying true to its mission and guiding principles.

Embracing Virtual Connections

As with 2020, this year saw the Member
Services team providing many of our services
remotely. While continuing to muss face-to-face
contact with our members, the team capitalized
on the benefits of virtual connections.

Virtual Risk M ~ont
In March, the Member Services team delivered
our first-ever virtual Risk Management
Conference. Despite challenges in finding ways

_to engage participants in an online forum, we
exceeded targets both in attendance and
participant experience. Registration was up
20% since the last conference in 2019 and
feedback was extremely positive.

The conference taught us that we can deliver
high-quality educatiocnal content in a virtual
format and that a remote option is crucial in
reaching a greater number of members. To this
end, our 2022 in-perscn Risk Management
Conference will be followed by a Mini Virtual
Conference that will be available online.

Greater Participation in Loss Control Program
The MIABC's Loss Control Program had
originally pianned to return to in-person
inspections in mid-2021, but services were
largely provided online due to ongoing
pandemic uncertainty and extreme weather
events. This had an unexpected benefit.
According to Director of Member Services
Megan Chorlton, “we were pleased to see
members taking advantage of a wider array of
0ss control services. With in-person
inspections off the table for much of 2021,
more members opted for policy audits, policy
drafting and virtual inspections. This allowed
the program to reach more members, as
remote services can be scheduled more easily
and delivered more efficiently. Despite a
planned return to in-person inspections in
2022, the legacy of virtual loss control services
will undoubtedly carry on.”

ting with our M rs in New W

The convenience of online communications
prompted the Member Services Department to
connect with its members in new ways. For
example, in the process of creating its Policy
Development Toolkits, the department decided
to create focus groups of about 15 local
government staff members to review each
toolkit. Megan reports: “Had we been focused
on in-person meetings, there is no way we
could have pulled together such a diverse
cross-section of local government staff.
Accustomed as we now are to virtual
communication, we realized that we could
easily do so in the remote environment.”
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Adapting to Legal and Regulatory
Changes

The MIABC adapted to several legal and
regulatory changes this year.

Supreme Court Narrows Policy Defence

In October, the Supreme Court of Canada
released its landmark decision in Nelson (City)
v. Marchi, restricting the types of governmental
decisions that will be immune from tort liability
under the policy defence. Though Marchiwas a
snow removal case, the decision will apply
widely to all negligence and occupiers’ liability
claims against public authorities.

Marchi was widely reported in the media and
raised many questions amongst our members.
Fortunately, the MIABC already had a solid
foundation of educational tools surrounding the
policy defence and could easily adapt those
tools to incorporate the court's findings. In
short order, the MIABC put out blog posts, a
dedicated newsletter, and a webinar, providing
targeted advice and reassuring members that
much of the MIABC's previous risk
management advice continued to apply.

i
This year, our lawyers and claims examiners
saw an increase In the number of claims
brought in the Civil Resolution Tribunal (CRT),
an online administrative tribunal that handles
small claims up to $5,000.

Self-represented litigants are increasingly
addressing their grievances with local
governments in this fashion, even where their

complaint lacks a legal foundation. Perhaps due

to mental health struggles exacerbated by the
pandemic, many claims have a strong
emotional component. As the CRT has minimal
gatekeeping functions, many claims go to a full
written hearing.

From the perspective of the Legal and Claims
Departments, it has been necessary to adapt to

the reality that claims by self-represented
litigants, whether brought in the CRT or
otherwise, require more time and energy to
defend. According to Legal Counsel Steven
Gares, “the increase in popularity of the CRT is
good and necessary from an access-to-justice
perspective, But from our members' point of
view, we must defend an increasing number of
questionable claims, We aim to serve our
members by always treating self-represented
litigants with courtesy and respect, while
attempting to address their legal allegations in a
stratghtforward and efficient manner.”

Shall f Virtual Litigati

The Legal and Claims Departments have also
adapted o shifts back and forth between
remote and in-person litigation. While this has
made scheduling difficult, the upside is that it
has forced the courts and legal profession to
adapt to the need for online legal services.
According to Steven Gares, “there are some
court processes that are much more effective in
person. On the other hand, many court
procedures can now be accomplished more
efficiently because it is not necessary to fly
across the province for a short appearance.
These cost-effective measures are likely to
outiast the pandemic.”
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Regulatory Changes

Chief Risk Officer Maryam Sherkat reports that
over the years, the MIABC's compliance
obligations have increased. “We are a financiai
institution and as such we are subject to
regulatory scrutiny. While this obviously has
implications for resource allocation for our
organization, it is in the interests of our
members that we adhere to best practices.”
While regulatory requirements are increasing,
in at least one respect, new technology is
making compliance more timely and efficient.
This year, our regulator, the BC Financial
Services Authority (BCFSA) introduced the new
Integrated Regulatory Information System, a
portal designed to streamline the prowision of
regulatory information and submissions to the
BCFSA. According to Maryam, the more
streamlined communication system indirectly
benefits members. “We can spend less time
providing documents to our regulators and
more time on services that have a direct and
tangible impact on our members.”

Responding to and Learning from
Climate Change Events

Across Canada, communities are increasingly
impacted by climate change. 2021 was a year
of unprecedented weather extremes, from the
heat dome to wildfires to severe floods and
landslides. Every one of our members has been
affected by the escalating frequency and
severity of extreme weather-related events.

Member Services Qutreach

“The extreme weather events taught us two
things,” reports Megan Chorlton. “First, there is
a lot we can do to help members experiencing a
crisis situation. Second, we are not necessarily
the first (or even second or third) call that our
members think to make during a catastrophic
event.”

To ameliorate this disconnect, in late 2021 the
Member Services team decided to develop the
Response Ready program. This initiative is
designed to communicate to our members that
we can support them as they deal with the
threat of catastrophic losses relating to extreme
weather events, including wildfires, landslides,
and floods. Under this program, the MIABC will
take a proactive approach to disaster support,
contacting members to offer assistance before
and during catastrophic events. Services will
include coverage advice, short-term business
continuity support, and claims assistance.

Capital Stability to Cover Weather-Related
Claims

This year, thanks to various factors, including
growth of the Property and Ancillary Insurance
Program, moderate claims activity, and
Investment gains, the MIABC's subscribers'
capital exceeded $100 million for the first time
In the history of the organization.

The MIABC's stronger capital positionis a
welcome support, given the riskier environment
in which we now operate. Liability claims are, by
their nature, unpredictable. Overall, our claims
profile continues to be stable, but moving
forward, climate change-related events will
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continue to impact our members, leading to
larger claims. With careful capital management,
the Board is positioning the MIABC for the
eventuality that claims of $10 million in
magnitude wili not be as rare as they have been
in the past.

Overall, a better capital position gives us more
capacity to address our members’ insurance
risks, including the ever-present earthquake
rsk.

The Need for Intergovernmental Cooperation
Change can be an effective teacher. The
successive natural catastrophes of 2021
revealed quite starkly that there is a limit to
commercial insurance capacity in the face of
catastrophic weather events.

According to our CEQ Tom Barnes, "what
shocked people about the 2021 wildfires and
floods is how much damage these events could
cause to uninsured assets. The dramatic
pictures revealed extreme damage to linear
infrastructure - roads, electrical lines,
sidewalks, and sewers ~ none of which are
insured at any level of government. In fact, all of
the insurers in the world would not have the
capacity to insure billions of dollars of
infrastructure. Rather, there is a need for inter-
governmental cooperation at the highest level
to plan funding for inevitable damage to these
assets. The MIABC is in a good position to
assist in that process, but it will require
widespread cooperation.”
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EVOLVE

The MIABC has long recognized that in order to thrive, it must constantly evolve. This was more

evident than ever in 2021,

i ition C I

This year, the Board voted in favour of creating
the MIABC's first in-house road adjuster
position. Independent adjusters are an essential
part of our claims handling services. We rely on
them to investigate high-value, complex claims.

To date, the MIABC has outsourced all
adjusting services to external third-party
service providers. Bringing a portion of this
work in-house will enable the MIABC to build
stronger relationships with our member
contacts and achieve significant costs savings.

Director of Claims Sherman Chow sees the
creation of this position as an important step in
the evolution of the Claims and Legal
Departments. "Our organization began as a
bare-bones operation. The MIABC's founders
did not even contemplate having claim
examiners on staff, The Claims Department
was created in the |ate 80s when the Board
realized they could provide better service with a
dedicated in-house team. The next step was
the creation of the in-house Legal Department
In 2006. | see the road adjuster position as the
next logical stage of that evolution. In addition
to saving money for our members, we are
growing our specialized staff of local
government liability professionals.”

New ERM Policy

The MIABC's Enterprise Risk Management
(ERM) program, first launched in 2011, has
evolved considerably over the past decade.
While we initially embarked on this project to
satisfy a regulatory requirement, we have seen

tangible benefits in the form of vast
improvements to the quality and efficiency of
our operations,

While our ERM program has been in place for
over a decade, in the past two years the board
has made great strides in developing and
refining several key policies, including our
Capital Management Plan, Statement of
Investment Policies & Procedures, and
Reinsurance Risk Management Policy. These
collective changes prompted the need for a
more fulsome, comprehensive ERM Policy,
which the board adopted in June.

As our internal program matures, the MIABC

has been sharing a number of ERM-related
tools with our members. For example, our Risk
Management Specialist Sandra Mayo
developed several business continuity
resources this year. We have also shared our
knowledge of cyber incident planning through
webinars and blog posts.

Diversity and Inclusi

In 2020 and 2021, tragic events drew attention -
to the racism and marginalization faced by
BIPOC individuals around the world. While we
have a diverse staff from many different
backgrounds, the MIABC recognized the need
for a dedicated committee to advance the

values of diversity and inclusivity within the
MIABC community. Together, staff and
management struck the Inclusion, Diversity,
Equality & Anti-Racism (IDEA) Committee.

Recent initiatives include:

+ Recommending changes to policies to
reflect diversity and inclusion principles;

UQD



MIABC 2021 ANNUAL REPORT / EVOLVE 13

» Meeting to determine how to recognize
the National Day for Truth and
Reconciliation;

o Preparing a list of BIPOC-owned vendors
for sourcing various products and
services; and

» Developing formal anti-racism and equity
training for the board and staff (in
progress).

New Policy Devel Toolid

The MIABC has long advised its members that
following a written inspection or maintenance
policy can be a useful tool for defending
negligence lawsuits. When more and more
members were asking for sample policies, we
realized that if we were going to provide this
advice, we also needed to provide educational
support so that members could actively heed
our advice, with or without expert assistance:

This year, the MIABC developed a collection of
several Policy Development Toolkits to guide
members through creating or reviewing their
inspection and maintenance policies. Members
can use these toolkits as a guide to help create
and refine a customized policy that works for
their specific budgetary, staff, and political
needs.

So far, the MIABC has released four toolkits
{with six more to follow in 2022 and 2023):

» Roads Maintenance

¢ Parks and Trails

» Sidewalk Inspection and Maintenance
e Snowand Ice

Over the course of 2020-2021, the Member
Services Department worked closely with our
website developer, Upanup, to build a new
website that is flexible, adaptable, and easy for
our members to navigate.

“It was important to develop a webstte that
could evolve with our organization over time,"
reports Megan Chorlton. “Now we can add
interactive elements and frequently update the
content to stay current.” There are multiple
interactive tools in the works, including a
chatbot that answers FAQs and a tool that
advises members on minimum levels of
insurance for contracts.

The website launched in July and quickly
garnered attention, receiving the Centauri
award at the Vega Digital Awards and the Gold
Medal at the Marcom Awards.
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In 2021, the MIABC not only reacted to challenges; it also seized opportunity and found new ways to

advance the interests of local governments in BC.

The Property Insurance Program had another
successful year, significantly expanding its book
of business with 2 number of new members. In
early 2022, the program reached a noteworthy
milestone: 50% of our members now
participate in the Property Insurance Program.

“I largely attribute this growth to our long-term
commitment to stable rates," says Director of
Insurance Glenn McLaughlin. "Globally, the
insurance market I1s experiencing a hard
market. Prices around the world are up
significantly. The MIABC operates differently,
focusing on stability as one of our core values.
We don't slash rates in soft markets, nor do we
dramatically raise them in hard markets. Given
the current market volatility, more and more
local governments are now appreciating the
value of stability.”

Our brokerage arm, Civic Risk Insurance
Solutions (CRIS}, also expanded this year, with
growing demand from members for ancillary
and specialty coverage. This is becoming an
increasingly important service for our
members.

The rapidly growing member base has forced
the Insurance Department to expand, evolve,
and become more efficient in order to meet the
substantial influx of demand. The team also
collaborated with the Member Services
Department to adapt the Loss Control Program
to the needs of Property Insurance Program
members.

Overall, 2021 was a tremendousiy successful
year for the Insurance Department, with
significant growth enhancing the stability of the

whole organization and increasing our capacity
to serve our members.

Expansion of Coverage

The MIABC is continually looking for ways to
advance its members' interests by expanding
insurance coverage. This year was no exception.
The Board proposed four expansions of
coverage, all of which were approved by the
members at the MIABC's AGM:

Liability Protection Agreement Amendments

« Off-Highway Automobile Liability
Coverage - Provides coverage for damage
caused by the off-highway operation of a
non-standard motor vehicle, filling a
coverage gap created by changes in
ICBC's policies.

» Medical Services - Provides coverage for
licensed emergency medical assistants,
first responders, and paramedics,
ensuring that licensed and trained
firefighters providing paramedic services
are not excluded from coverage.

o Communicable Diseases - Provides
coverage related to transmission of
communicable diseases (subject to a
sublimit of $250,000), filing a gap created
when other insurers retracted coverage.

Property Insurance Agreement Amendment

s Licensed Mobile Equipment (Contractor's
Equipment) - Expands our basic policy to
include coverage for damage to licensed
mobile equipment (a coverage that was
previously placed through our brokerage
army.

(/0



MIABC 2021 ANNUAL REPORT / ADVANCE 15

fn 2021, the Insurance Department also began
a comprehensive review and overhaul of the
Property Insurance Agreement, aiming to
clarify language and ensure we continue to
meet the needs of the membership.

bbying for Greater Local Govern t
Immunity
As the province's largest liability insurer of local
governments, the MIABC is uniguely positioned
to advance members' civil liability interests by
pursuing legislative reform.

This year, the MIABC focused on section 744 of
the Local Government Act, a statutory provision
that affords limited immunity to local
governments for certain types of nuisance
claims. According to Chief Risk Officer Maryam
Sherkat, “our members are facing increasingly
frequent claims arising from sewer back-ups
and floods. In other provinces, municipalities
enjoy broad statutory immunity for this type of
claim, thanks to clearly worded legisiative
provisions. That is not the case in BC, where the
narrow wording of section 744 has spawned a
great deal of litigation.”

The MIABC worked to raise awareness around
this issue through speaking events and
publications. The MIABC put resolutions before
each of the Area Association Conferences to
ask the UBCM to collaborate with the Province
on expanding the wording of section 744. We
are pleased to report that at the September
UBCM Convention, delegates approved our
resolution to expand section 744,
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[ arn pleased to present the MIABC's Financial
Statements for the 2021 fiscal year.

Subscribers' capital sits at $100.9 million, up
significantly from $91.1 million at the end of
2020. This is the first time in our organization's
history that subscribers' capital has exceeded
$100 million.

Gross written premiums for the Liability and
Property Insurance Programs exceeded $23.3
million {compared to $20.3 miillion in 2020).
The MIABC ended the year with a net income
of $8.3 million, up from $4.5 million in 2020.

The Property Insurance Program grew
considerably, with the addition of a number
of large and small local governments. As of
February 2022, half of the MIABC's Liability
Program members have now joined the
Property Program. Civic Risk Insurance
Solutions sourced a wide range of ancillary
products for our members and saw broker
commission revenue increase 12.4% from the
previous year.

The MIABC returned $374,000 to members
in the form of risk management grants. This is
down from previous years, but grant volume
Is expected to return to normal in 2022 with
the return of our in-person Risk Management
Conference.

The MIABC's investment portfolio grew by

$8 million in 2021, thanks in part to strong
performance across the capital markets. The
new year, however, has brought renewed
volatility and uncertainty in the capital markets.

The MIABC's capital position is strong, as
reflected in its minimum capital test (MCT) ratio
of 470%, which is well above the requirements
of our regulator.

Overall, the MIABC's stronger capital
position is a welcome support, given the
riskier environment in which we now operate
Liability claims are unpredictable, and claims
associated with climate change-related
disasters will continue to impact claims on our
Liability and Property Insurance Programs
Despite these challenges, our solid capital
position continues to support our ability to
absorb large claims, while maintaining stable
rates through a hardening market.

E k
Karen Grommada
Chair, Finance/Audit Committee
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Subscribers of Municipal Insurance Association of British Columbia

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the Municipal Insurance
Association of Brtish Columbia {the Assaciation), which comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2021

¢ the consolidated statement of income for the year then ended

* the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended

* the consolidated statement of changes in subscribers' equity for the year then ended

¢ the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended

* and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies

{hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Association as at December 31,
2021, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
“Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" section of our
auditors’ report.

We are independent of the Association in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.
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Municipal Insurance Association of British Columbia
Page 2

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance
for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In prepanng the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Association’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Association or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Association's financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the hasis of the financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

e [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, fargery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association's internal control.

S
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Municipal Insurance Association of British Columbia
Page 3

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Association's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Association to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the group Entity to express an opinion on the
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision, and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

K& 44F
i

Chartered Professional Accountants

Vancouver, Canada
March 9, 2022
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Actuanies and Insurance Management Advisors

REPORT OF THE ACTUARY

Role of Actuary

The actuary is appeinted by the Board of Directors of the Municipal Insurance Association of British
Columbia (“MIABC"} pursuant to the Insurance Act. The actuary is responsible for ensuring that the
assumptions and methods used in the valuation of policy liabilities are in accordance with accepted
actuarial practice, applicable legislation and associated regulations or directives. The actuary is also
required to provide an opinion regarding the appropriateness of the policy liabilities at the balance
sheet date to meet all policyholder obligations of the MIABC. Examination of supporting data for
accuracy and completeness and consideration of the MIABC's assets are important elements of the
work required to form this opinion.

Policy liabilities include unearned premiums, unpaid claims and adjustment expenses, the reinsurers’
share of unearned premiums and unpaid claims and adjustment expenses, deferred premium
acquisition costs, premium deficiency and retrospective adjustments. The actuary uses the work of
the external and internal auditors in verifying data used for valuation purposes.

Appointed Actuary’s Report

To the Subscribers of the
Municipal Insurance Association of British Columbia

| have valued the policy labilities and reinsurance recoverables of the Municipal Insurance
Association of British Columbia for its statement of financial position at December 31, 2021 and their
changes in the statement of earnings for the year then ended in accordance with accepted actuarial
practice in Canada, including selection of appropriate assumptions and methods.

In my opinion, the amount of policy liabilities net of reinsurance recoverables makes appropriate
pravision for all policy obligations and the financial statements fairly presents the results of the
valuation.

St-Bruno-de-Montarville, Quebec Julie-Linda Laforce
March 3, 2022 Fellow, Canadian Institute of Actuaries

2200 Mane-Victonn, suite 201, St-Bruno-de-Montarville, Québec, J3V 0M2
Tel. 1.450 646 2500 | Fax. 1855.529.9462 | Web www axxima ca
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MUNICIPAL INSURANCE ASSOCIATION OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2021 with comparative information for 2020

Noles 2021 2020
Assets
Cash $ 6315447 k] 8015 360
Restricted cash 4 500,532 438,044
Accounts receivable 8 121,598 5637106
Investments 5 121,735,475 113,760,066
Reinsurers’ share of unpaid claims and adjustment expenses 6 12,132,342 7,933,740
Reinsurers share of unearned premiums 4,788,242 3711781
Recoverable from subscribers 6 12,210,385 14 952 856
Deferred polcy acquisition costs 7 228 468 178164
Prepaid expenses 211,007 185 622
Property and equipment 8 7.183.087 7,500,798
Right-of-use asset 38,018 48 B8O
Investment property 4 15,068 .607 15,213,860
$ 188543209 $ 177576277
Liabilities and Subscribers' Equity
Accounts payable and accrued liabiiities S 1,142,299 $ 859071
Lease liabifities g 39,148 49 599
Premium tax payabie 83.900 420.442
Due to reinsurers 4.318.540 3.486 487
Provision for unpaid claims and adjustment expenses & 75690 215 76 660 364
Unearned sponsorship fund 14 000 23.000
Unearned premiums 5,192 485 4,049 186
Unearned commissicns 1.060.778 854 341
Tenant deposits 48 898 48,808
F 87,590,263 86,451,388
Subscnbers equity
Equity coniributed by subscribers 10 7.866.515 7,866 515
Retained earnings 80571191 72,276.839
Accumulated other comprebensive income 12,515,240 10,981 535
100,952,946 91,124 889
Commitments 11
o - $ 188543209 S 177.576277
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
Ap on behalf of the
! Director Brrector

; Loceacin
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MUNICIPAL INSURANCE ASSOCIATION OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

Consolidated Statement of Income

Year ended December 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2020

Notes 2021 2020
Gross premiums written $ 23,340,308 $ 20,338,215
Reinsurance ceded (10,614,715} (8,730,373)
Net premiums written 12,725,593 11,607,842
Change in unearned premiums (1,143,299) (1,110,001)
Change in reinsurers’ share of unearned premiums 1,076,461 1,028,726
Net premiums earned 12,658,755 11,526,567
Commission income 1,783,066 1,441,799
Expenses:
Claims incurred 6 7,860,093 8,275,109
Administrative and claims management 12 4,473,692 3,566,918
Premiurn tax 972,507 715,523
Risk management grants 11 374,272 460,127
Amortization of property and equipment 8 388,459 389,651
Amortization of leased equipment 10,862 10,862
Lease financing costs 1,484 1,792
Other (4,489) 9,267
14,076,780 13,429,249
Underwriting income (loss) 365,039 (460,883)
Other income and expenses:
Investment income 5 7,430,847 4416156
Investment management fees (242,271) (219,141)
Rental income, net 13 433,633 400,186
Other income 307,102 259,232
Write down of asset 8 - (39,376)
Gain from insurance claim coverage 8 - 198,378
7,929,311 5015435
Net income $ 8,294,352 $ 4,554,552

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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MUNICIPAL INSURANCE ASSOCIATION OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended December 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2020

2021 2020

Net income $ 8,294,352 $ 4,554,552
Other comprehensive income:;

Net unrealized change in fair value of AFS securities 1,533,705 2,371,143

Total comprehensive income $ 9,828,057 $ 6,925,695

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

+
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MUNICIPAL INSURANCE ASSOCIATION OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Subscribers' Equity

Year ended December 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2020

Accumulated
Equity other Total
contributed by Retained comprehensive subscribers’
subscribers earnings income* equity
Balance, December 31, 2019 $ 7,866,515 $ 67,722,287 $ 8,610,392 $ 84,199,194
Net income - 4,554,552 - 4,554,552
Other comprahensive income - - 2,371,143 2,371,143
Balance, December 31, 2020 7.866,515 72,276,839 10,581,535 91,124,889
Net income - 8,294,352 - 8,294,352
Other comprehensive income - - 1,533,705 1,633,705
Balance, December 31, 2021 $ 7,866,515 $ 80,571,191 $ 12515240 $ 100,952,946

* Represents unrealized gains on AFS financial assets.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financiat statements.
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MUNICIPAL INSURANCE ASSOCIATION OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2020

2021 2020
Cash provided by (used in);
Operations:
Net income $ 8,294,352 $ 4554552
ltems not affecting cash:
Amortization of property and equipment 388,459 389,651
Amortization of investment property 159,252 145,882
Amortization of leased equipment 10,862 10,882
Lease financing costs 1,484 1,792
Lease modifications - 957
Investment income (7,430,847} (4,416,156)
Net gain on disposal of AFS financial assets 3,885,609 1,330,271
Write down of asset - 39,376
Gain from insurance claim coverage - {198,378)
5,309,171 1,858,809
Changes in non-cash operating working capital:
Accounts receivable (2,484.492) (1,060,218)
Reinsurers' share of unpaid claims and adjustment expenses (4,198,602) (326,561)
Recoverable from subscribers 2,742 471 940,890
Reinsurers’ share of uneared premiums (1,076.461) (1,028,726)
Deferred policy acquisition costs (50,305) (48,003)
Prepaid expenses (25,385) (6,491)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 283,225 56,308
Premium tax payable (336,542) 224,342
Due to reinsurers 832,053 1,149,811
Dividend payable - (757,921)
Provision for unpaid claims and adjustment expenses {970,149) 2,243,146
Uneamed premiums 1,143,298 1,110,001
Unearned commissions 206,437 188,006
Unearned sponsorship fund (9,000) 23,000
1,365,720 4,566,393
Financing: . )
Payments of lease liabilities {11,935) (11,935)
investments:
Interest received 1,817,111 2,005,919
Dividends received 1,728,127 1,079,966
Net (acquisition) disposal of investments (6,441,702} (2,841,711)
Net change in restricted cash (62,488) (147,358)
Purchase of building equipment (80,747) (88,858)
Purchase of investment property {13,999) {79,595)
(3,053,698) 128,363
Increase (decrease) in cash (1,699,913) 4,682,821
Cash, beginning of year 8,015,360 3,332,539
Cash, end of year $ 6,315,447 $ 8,015,360

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



28

MIADBC 2021 ANNUAL REPORT / FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MUNICIPAL INSURANCE ASSOCIATION OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended December 31, 2021

1.

Reporting entity:

The Municipal Insurance Association of British Columbia (the “Assaciation™} is a reciprocal
insurance exchange within the meaning of Section 186 of the Financial Institutions Act of
British Columbia, (the “Act”), and underwrites property and liability insurance for its subscribers.
The address of the Association's registered office is Suite #200 - 429 West 2nd Avenue,
Vancouver, British Columbia, V5Y 1E3, and the Association is domiciled in Canada. The
Association is tax-exempt under the Income Tax Act (Canada).

These consolidated financial statements incorporate the Association’s wholly-owned subsidiaries,
MIABC Holdings Ltd. ("MIABC Holdings"), MIABC Management Ltd. (*"MIABC Management} and
Civic Risk Insurance Solutions, In¢c. ("CRIS"). MIABC Holdings and MIABC Management,
together, administer and manage the Association's real estate property holdings. CRIS sources
ancillary, excess or specialty insurance coverage as requested by subscribers.

Impact of COVID-19:

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization (*WHO") recognized COVID-19 as a global
pandemic, prompting many national, regional, and local governments to implement preventative
or protective measures, such as travel and business restrictions, temporary store closures, and
wide-sweeping quarantines and stay-at-home orders. As a result, COVID-19 and the related
restrictive measures have had a significant adverse impact upon many sectors of the economy.
The Association is monitoring its operations, liquidity, and capital resources and is working to
minimize the current and future impact of this unprecedented situation. British Columbia local
governments have been given immunity from transmission claims during the state of emergency
when transmission risk is at its greatest, limiting the risk of local governments being held liable for
the transmission of COVID-19. As of the date of issuance of these financial statements the future
full impact to the Association is not known.

Basis of preparation:
Statement of compliance:

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board ("IASB").

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on
March 3, 2022.

(a) Basis of measurement:

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis
except for available-for-sale (“AFS") financial assets, which are measured at fair value.

(b
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MUNICIPAL INSURANCE ASSOCIATION OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended December 31, 2021

2. Basis of preparation (continued):

{b} Functional and presentation currency:

(c)

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the
Association's functional currency.

Use of estimates and judgments:;

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which they become known.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty in applying accounting policies
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in these consolidated
financial statements are described in the following notes:

¢ Note6 - Provision for unpaid claims and adjustment expense; and

¢ Note 15 - Financial instruments and financial and insurance risk.

3. Significant accounting policies:

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these consolidated financial statements, except as otherwise noted.

(a)

Basis of consolidation:

These consolidated financial statements include the assets, liabilities and result of operations
of the Association and its subsidiaries, after elimination of inter-company transactions and
balances. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which the Association obtains
control, and continue to be consclidated until the date that such control ceases. Control is
achieved when the Association is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
invalvement with an entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period
as the Association using consistent accounting policies.

Cop
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MUNICIPAL INSURANCE ASSOCIATION OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

Notes o Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended December 31, 2021

3. Significant accounting policies (continued):
(b) Financial instruments:
(i) Non-derivative financial assets:

The Association initially recognizes loans and receivables on the date that they are
originated. All other financial assets are recognized initially on the trade date at which the
Association becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Association derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows
on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets
that is created or retained by the Association is recognized as a separate asset or liability.
The Association derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged, cancelled, or expire.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position when, and only when, the Association has a fegal right to
offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

The Association has the following non-derivative financial assets: loans and receivables
and available-for-sale (“AFS"} financial assets.

Loans and receivables:

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Such assets are recognized initially at fair value plus any
directly altributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and

- receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses. Loans and receivables comprise cash, restricted cash, recoverable
from subscribers and accounts receivable.

AFS financial assets:

AFS financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as AFS or that
are not classified as loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. The Association’s investments are classified as
AFS financial assets. Such assets are recognized initially at fair value, and subsequent to
initial recognition, they continue to be measured at fair value and changes therein, other
than impairment losses and foreign currency differences on AFS equity instruments, are
recognized in other comprehensive income and presented separately within subscribers’
equity. When an investment is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss in other
comprehensive income is transferred to net income.
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MUNICIPAL INSURANCE ASSOCIATION OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended December 31, 2021

3. Significant accounting policies {continued):
{b) Financial instruments (continued):
(/i) Non-derivative financial liabilities:

The Association's financial liabilities are recognized initially on the trade date at which the
Association becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Association's non-derivative financial liabilities consist of accounts payable and
accrued liabilities. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are recognized initially at fair
value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
these financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

{c) Impairment:
(f) Financial assets (including receivables):

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit and loss is assessed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A
financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates a loss event has occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset, and the loss event had a negative effect on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset, which can be estimated reliably.

Obijective evidence that financial assets are impaired include default or delinquency by the
debtor, indications that the issuer of a security will enter bankruptcy, economic conditions,
that correlate with defaults or the disappearance of an active market for a security, or a
significant or prolonged decline in fair value of an equity security below its cost.

Impairment losses on AFS investments are recognized by transferring the cumulative loss
that has been recognized in other comprehensive income and presented in accumulated
other comprehensive income in subscribers' equity, to net income. The cumulative loss
that is removed from other comprehensive income and recognized in net income is the
difference between the acquisition costs, net of any principal repayments and
amortization, and the current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognized in
net income. Changes in impairment provisions attributable to time value of money are
reflected as a component of interest income.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an impaired AFS debt security increases and
the increase can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognized in net income, then the impairment loss is reversed, with the amount of the
reversal recognized in net income. However, any subsequent recovery in the fair value of
an impaired AFS equity security is otherwise recognized in other comprehensive income.



32

AMIABC 2021 ANNUAL REPORT / FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MUNICIPAL INSURANCE ASSOCIATION OF BRITISH COLUMBIA
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Year ended December 31, 2021

3. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(c)

(d)

(e)

Impairment {continued):
(7} Financial assets (including receivables) (continued):

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is
calculated as the difference between its camrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate.
Losses are recognized in net earnings and reflected in an allowance account against
receivables. interest on the impaired asset continues to be recognized through the
unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment
loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through net income.

Fair value measurement:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The Association uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement or disclosure:

Level 1: quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at measurement date.

Level 2. inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

l.evel 3: unobservable inputs for assets or liability.
Property and equipment:

Office building, furniture and fixtures, computer equipment and office improvements are
measured at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses,
Amortization is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
respective assets.

Asset Estimated useful life
Office building 40 years
Furniture and fixtures 5years
Computer equipment 3 years
Office improvements 10 years

Amortization methods, useful lives, and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-
end and adjusted, if appropriate.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(e) Property and equipment (continued):

(f)

The carrying amounts of property and equipment are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Investment property:

Investment property includes commercial property held to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation, or both. Investment property comprises land, buildings, and parts thereof.
Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related acquisition costs, if
applicable. Acquisition costs include applicable transfer taxes and professional fees which
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The carrying amount of investment
property also includes companents relating to lease incentives, tenant improvements and
straight-line rent receivables. Subsequent capital expenditures are capitalized to investment
property only when it is probable that future economic benefits of the expenditure will flow to
the Association and the cost can be measured reliably.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is calculated on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful life of the investment property, being 40 years. The fair value
of investment property is determined using available market-based evidence, active market
prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location, or condition of the
specific investment property. If market evidence is not available, the Association uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent transaction prices or discounted cash flow
projections.

The following approaches, either individually or in combination, are used by management,
together with the appraisers, in their determination of the fair value of the investment
properties:

(i} The Income Approach derives market value by estimating the future cash flows that will
be generated by the property and then applying an appropriate capitalization method
and/or discount rate to those cash flows. This approach can utilize the direct
capitalization method and/or the discounted cash flow analysis.

(ii) The Direct Comparison Approach involves comparing or contrasting the recent sale,
listing or opticned prices of properties comparable to the subject and adjusting for any
significant differences between them.

Management reviews each independent appraisal and ensures the assumptions used by the
appraisers are reasonable and the final fair value amount reflects those assumptions used in
the various approaches above.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended December 31, 2021

3. Significant accounting policies (continued):

®

{a)

(h)

Investment property (continued):

Any gains and losses on the disposal of investment property are recognized in the
consolidated statement of income in the year of disposal.

Gains and losses on the disposal of investment property are determined as the difference
hetween net disposal proceeds and the carrying value of the asset on the date the
transaction occurred.

Provisions:

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Association has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding
of the discount is recognized in finance costs.

Recaognition and measurement of insurance contracts:
{i) Classification of insurance contracts:

Insurance contracts are contracts under which the Association accepts or cedes
significant insurance risk from another party (the “policyholder”) by agreeing to
compensate the policyholder or other beneficiary if a specified uncertain future event
(the “insured event”) adversely affects the policyholder or other beneficiaries. Insurance
risk is significant, if and only if, an insured event could cause the Association to pay a
significant claim.

Once a contract is classified as an insurance contract it remains classified as an
insurance contract until all rights and obligations are extinguished or expire.

(i) Premiums:

Earned assessments comprise the premiums on insurance contracts entered into during
the year. Premiums are shown gross of any taxes levied on premiums.

The Association recognizes premium income evenly over the term of the insurance policy
using the pro rata method.

(iif) Provision for unpaid claims and adjustment expenses:

Claims outstanding comprise provisions for the Association's estimate of the ultimate cost
of settling all claims incurred but unpaid at the reporting date whether reported or not. It
also includes estimates relating to claims administration costs recoverable from
subscribers. Claims outstanding are assessed by reviewing individual claims and making
allowance for claims incurred but not yet reported, the effect of both internal and external
foreseeable events, such as changes in claims handling procedures, inflation, judicial
trends, legislative changes and past experience and trends. Claims related balances are
carried on a discounted basis in accordance with accepted actuarial practice in Canada.

5
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(h) Recognition and measurement of insurance contracts (continued):

{iii) Provision for unpaid claims and adjustment expenses (continued):

Adjustments to claim provisions established in prior years are reflected in the financial
statements of the period in which the adjustments are made and disclosed separately if
material. The methods used, and the estimates made, are reviewed regularly.

{iv) Reinsurance;

)

The Association cedes reinsurance in the normal course of business for the purpose of
limiting its net loss potential through the transfer of insurance risk. Assets, liabilities,
income and expenses arising from ceded reinsurance contracts are presented separately
from the related assets, liabilities, income and expenses from the related insurance
contracts because the reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Association from its
direct obligations to its policyholders.

Only reinsurance agreements that give rise to a significant transfer of insurance risk are
accounted for as reinsurance contracts. Amounts recoverable under such contracts are
recognized in the same year as the related claim.

Reinsurance premiums for ceded reinsurance are recognized as an expense over the
period that the reinsurance cover is provided using the pro rata method.

The amounts recognized as reinsurance assets are measured on a basis that is
consistent with the measurement of the provision for unpaid claims and adjustment
expenses held in respect of the related insurance contracts. Reinsurance assets include
recoveries due from reinsurance companies in respect of claims paid.

Reinsurance assets are assessed for impairment at each reporting date or more
frequently when an indication of impairment arises during the reporting year. Such assets
are deemed impaired if there is objective evidence, as a result of an event that occurred
after its initial recognition, that the Association may not recover all amounts due under the
terms of the contract and that the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts
that the Association will receive from the reinsurer. Reinsurance assets and liabilities are
derecognized when the contract rights are extinguished or expire.

Deferred policy acquisition costs {(*"DPAC"):

DPAC are assessed for impairment at each reporting date or more frequently when an
indication of impairment arises during the reporting year. When the recoverable amount
is less than the carrying value, an impairment loss is recognized in the statement of
income. DPAC are also considered in the liability adequacy test for each reporting period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended December 31, 2021

3. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(h) Recognition and measurement of insurance contracts (continued):

(v} Deferred policy acquisition costs (‘DPAC") (continued):

Provision is made for unexpired risks arising where the expected value of claims and
expenses aftributable to the unexpired periods of policies in force at the date of the
statement of financial position exceeds the unearned premium provision in relation to
such policies after the deduction of any DPAC. In calculating this provision, current best
estimates of future contractual cash flows and claims handling and administration
expenses, as well as investment from the assets backing such liabilities, are used. Any
deficiency is immediately charged to earnings initially by writing off DPAC and by
subsequently establishing a provision for losses arising from liability adequacy tests (the
unexpected risk provision). Any DPAC written off cannot subsequently be reinstated.

(w) Liability adequacy test:

At the end of each reporting period, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the
adequacy of the insurance contract liabilities. In performing these tests, current best
estimates of future contractual cash flows and claims handling and administration
expenses, as well as investment income from the assets backing such liabilities, are
used. Any deficiency is immediately charged to net income by establishing a provision for
losses arising from liability adequacy tests.

Leases:

At inception of a contract, the Association assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease
based on the definition of a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

The Association recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. The right-of-use assets are initially measured at the amount of
the lease liability plus any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee. Adjustments may also be
required for lease incentives, payments at or prior to commencement and restoration
obligations.

The assets are depreciated to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset
or the lease term using the straight-line method as this most closely reflects the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments payable
over the lease term, discounted at the rate implicit in the lease, or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Association's incremental borrowing rate. The lease liability is
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. It is
remeasured when there are changes in the following: (i) in the lease term; (i} the
Association's assassment of whether it will exercise a purchase option; {ii/) a change in an
index or a change in the rate used to determine the payments; and {iv) amounts expected to
be payable under residual value guarantees.
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3. Significant accounting policies {(continued):

4,

)

(k)

Rental revenue:

Rental revenue is recognized in net income on a straight-line basis over the lease term
subject to collectability being reasonably assured.

Rental revenue includes recoveries of specified operating expenses, in accordance with the
terms of the lease agreements. Recoveries are recognized in the period in which the related
operating expense was incurred and coliectability is reasonably assured.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted:
IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts and IFRS 9 Financial instruments:

A number of new standards, and amendments to standards and interpretations, are not yet
effective for the year ended December 31, 2021, and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements. None of the new standards are expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Assaciation except for
IFRS 17, Insurance Conlracts ("IFRS 177) and IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9").
IFRS 17 changes the basis for classifying and measuring insurance contracts. The
mandatory effective date is January 1, 2023. IFRS 9 impacts the classification and
measurement of financial assets and liabilities. The effective date for the Association would
have been January 1, 2018; however, insurance entities have been granted a deferral for the
implementation of this standard to coincide with the implementation of IFRS 17. The extent of
the impact of these new standards has not yet been determined.

Investment property:

Balance, December 31, 2019 i $ 15,280,148
Additions 79,594
Amortization 145,882
Balance, December 31, 2020 15,213,860
Additions 13,999
Amortization 159,252
Balance, December 31, 2021 $ 15,068,607

{a) Restricted cash:

In accordance with the property management agreement, the restricted cash account was
created to hold cash in custody for the Association. Funds shall be advanced to the property
manager as needed and can only be disbursed from the account to pay for operating costs of
the rental property.
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(b) Fair value disclosures:

Investment property {continued):

As at December 31, 2021, the fair value of the investment property was reviewed by
considering the expected future cash flows, including rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases in light of current market conditions. It
also reflects any cash outflow that could be expected in respect of the property. The fair
market value as at December 31, 2021 is $30,685,000 (2020 - $28,408,000).

5. Investments:

{a) The cost and fair value of investments as at December 31 were as follows:

2021

2020

Cost Fair value

Cost

Fair value

Phillips, Hager & North

("PH&N") Mutual Funds:

Equities $ 11,404,868 § 17,072,299 $ 12,326,950 $ 17,352,717
Fixed Income 46,394,999 46,813,606 43,764,193 45,302,162
Money Market 40,494,836 40,494,836 32,369,317 32,369,317

98,294,703 104,380,741 88,460,460 95,024,196

iShares Index Funds:

Canadian Funds 9,983,948 16,383,464 9,935,567 14,393,518
US Funds 853,997 971,270 4,823,313 4,342,352

10,837,945 17,354,734 14,758,880 18,735,870

$ 109,132,648 $121,735475 § 103,219,340 $ 113,760,066

(b) Investment income:

2021 2020

Interest on AFS financial assets $1.817,111 2,005,919
Dividends on AFS financial assets 1,728,127 1,079,966
Net gains on disposal of AFS financial assets 3,885,609 1,330,271
$ 7.430,847 4,416,156
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5. Investments (continued):
{c) Fair value disclosures:

The fair value of the iShares Index Funds Investments were determined using market prices
in active markets (‘Level 1"). The fair value of the PH&N Mutual Funds Investments
{“Level 1") were determined using the daily closing net asset value of the underlying fund.
There were no financial instruments that were measured using a valuation technique based
oh observable market data (“Level 2") and unobservable market data (“Level 3"). During the
year ended December 31, 2021, no transfers have been made between the three levels
during the year (2020 - nil).

Valuation technique

Financial Investment Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
PHE&N Investments $ 104,380,741 § 104,380,741 § - % -
iShares Investments 17,354,734 17,354,734 - -
December 31, 2021 $ 121735475 § 121735475 % - % -

Valuation technique

Financial Investment Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
PH&N Investments $ 95024196 §$ 95024196 $ - 5 -
iShares Investments 18,735,870 18,735,870 - -
December 31, 2020 $ 113,760,066 $ 113,760,066 3 - % -

6. Provision for unpaid claims and adjustment expense:

The liability recorded as a provision for unpaid claims and adjustment expenses is determined by
the independent actuary based on an actuarial valuation prepared as of December 31 each year.
It represents estimates of the ultimate net cost, including legal and adjusters’ fees, of all reported
and unreported losses incurred to December 31 each year.

Upon settlement of a claim, the Association remits the entire claim payment to the claimant, and
subsequently recovers the deductible portion from the subscriber. Accordingly, the provision for
unpaid cfaims and adjustment expenses is shown inclusive of the subscribers' share of
$9,912,846 (2020 - $12,382,828). The provision for unpaid claims and adjustment expenses also
includes $2,297,539 (2020 - $2,570,028) in respect of unallocated claims administrative
expenses that are recoverable from the subscribers.
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6. Provision for unpaid claims and adjustment expense (continued):

(a) Liability and property insurance program:

2021 2020
Provision for unpaid claims and adjustment
expensas, net, beginning of year $ 53,773,768 $ 50,916,293
Claims incurred during the year 7,860,093 8,275,109
Direct paid claims during the year {15,027,697) (9,653,769)
Deductibles recoverad 3,137,315 3,363,961
Reinsurance recovered 1,604,009 872,174
Provision for unpaid claims and adjustment expenses,
net, end of year 51,347,488 53,773,768
Reinsurers' share of unpaid claims and adjustment
expenses, end of year 12,132,342 7.933,740
Recoverable from subscribers, end of year 12,210,385 14,952,856
Provision for unpaid claims and adjustment
expenses, end of year $ 75,690,215 $ 76,660,364
Profile of claims liabilities and amounts recoverable from reinsurers:
2021 2020
(Gross Ceded Gross Ceded
Unpaid claims and
adjustment expenses;
Undiscounted $ 72668464 $11,884670 $ 72970434 & 7,686,605
Amount of discount {4,544 262) (514,524) {4,142 ,402) (414,385)
Provision for adverse >
deviations 7,566,013 762,196 7,832,332 661,520

$ 75690215 §$12,132,342 § 76,660,364 § 7,933,740

The provision for unpaid claims and adjustment expenses and related reinsurance recoveries
are discounted using rates based on the expected investment vields. The discount rate
applied was 2.35% (2020 - 2.00%). As at December 31, 2021, had the discount rate
increased or decreased by 1%, the provision for unpaid claims and adjustment expenses
would have decreased by $1.414,080 (2020 - $1,501,005) or increased by $1,497,857
{2020 - $1,587,602), respectively. In practice, the actual results may differ from this sensitivity
analysis and the difference could be material.

(//%
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7. Deferred policy acquisition costs:

An analysis of the movements in deferred acquisition costs are as follows:

December 31, 2020:

Expenses deferred $ 178,164

Service costs on premiums written in 2021 1,022,812

Recognized in net eamnings (972,507)
December 31, 2021 $ 228,489
December 31, 2019:

Expenses deferred $ 130,161

Service costs on premiums written in 2020 764,362

Recognized in net earnings (716,359)
December 31, 2020 $ 178,164

8. Property and equipment:
Office Furniture Computer
building and fixtures equipment Total
Cost:
Balance, December 31, 2019 $ 8,923,833 $ 574,321 $ 532,368 $ 10,030,522
Additions 200,878 14,905 71,454 287,237
Disposals (98,439) (36.216) (176,651) (311,308)
Balance, December 31, 2020 9,026,272 553,010 427,171 10,006,453
Additions 8,484 30,870 41,393 80,747
Disposals - (8,036) - (8,036)
Balance, Dec.ember 31, 2021 $ 9,034,756 $ 575844 3 4.68.564 $ 10,079,164
Office Furniture Computer
building and fixtures equipment Total

Accumulated amertization:
Balance, December 31, 2019 $ 1,384,743 $ 565,691 $ 437,500 $ 2,387,934
Amortization 300,171 13,721 75,759 389,651
Disposals (59.063) (36.216) (176.651) (271,930)
Balance, December 31, 2020 1,625,851 543,196 336,608 2,505,655
Amoartization 301,019 11,848 75,591 388,459
Disposals - (8,037) - (8,037)
Balance, December 31, 2021 1,926,870 $ 547,008 $ 412199 $ 2,886,077
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8. Property and equipment {continued):

Office Furniture Computer
huilding and fixtures equipment Total
Carrying amounts:
December 31, 2020 $ 7,400,421 3 9,814 $ 80563 §$ 7500798
December 31, 2021 7,107,886 28,835 56,366 7,193,087

On May 21, 2020, the MIABC office was damaged as a result of a flocd. A net write down of
$38,376 was recorded to recognize the disposal and replacement of the hardwood floor. The
office was fully repaired by September 8, 2020.

The Association made a claim under the insurance policy for property insurance. Included in
other income for the year ended December 31, 2020 are insurance claims proceeds of $198, 378
of which nil is receivable.

9. Lease liabilities:

The Association leases two photocopier machines. The Association discounts lease payments
related to the equipment leases using the incremental borrowing rate of 3%.

The continuity of lease liabilities is as follows:

2021 2020
Balance, January 1 $ 49,599 $ 14,633
Disposals - (14,633}
Additions - 59,742
Payments (11,935) (11,935)
Financing costs : 1,484 1,792
Balance, December 31 3 39,148 $ 49,599
The two lease agreements expire in 2025.
10. Subscribers’ equity:
{a) Equity contributed by subscribers:
2021 2020
Balance, December 31 $ 7,866,515 $ 7,866,515
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10. Subscribers’ equity (continued):
{b)} Capital management:
The Association’s objectives when managing capital are;

¢ to safeguard the Association’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can
continue to provide coverage for current and future claims payments; and

* to ensure compliance, through monitoring regulatory capital on an ongoing basis.

Subscribers’ equity is comprised of equity contributed by subscribers, retained earnings and
accumulated other comprehensive income.

The FSA measures the financial strength of property and casualty insurers using the
minimum capital test ("MCT"). This test evaluates a Company's capital against its overall risk
profile. This risk-based framework assesses assets, liabilities, reinsurance structure, and
other such exposures by applying various factors to assess the adequacy of the Association's
capital.

The supervisory benchmark set by the FSA is a minimum MCT of 150%. As at December 31,
2021 and 2020, the Association's MCT level is in excess of the 150% MCT level.

In the normal course of business, the Association generates adequate operating cash flow
and has limited capital requirements.

11. Commitments:
{a) Pension costs:

The Association and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (the *Plan”} in
accordance with the Pension (Municipal) Act of British Columbia (the “Pension Act’). The
Superannuation Commission of the Province of British Columbia administers the Plan,
including the payment of pension benefits, on behalf of employers and employees to whom
the Pension Act applies. The Plan has approximately 220,321 active members from
approximately 945 employers.

The long-term funding pelicy for the Plan is based on contribution rates by member group
classifications. Using this methed, employer contribution rates are set so that, in combination
with members’ contributions, employers will fully pay for benefits earned by typical new
entrants to the Plan. As insufficient information is available to apply defined benefit
accounting, the Plan is accounted for on a defined contribution basis. The Plan's most recent
actuarial valuation report as at December 31, 2018 reported a surplus of $2,866,444,000.
Contributions to the Plan by the Association, which are expensed in the year they are
incurred, totaled $259,645 in 2021 (2020 - $255,106) and represents approximately 0.009%
of total annual contributions to the Plan.
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1.

12

13.

14.

Commitments {continued):
(b) Risk management grants:

The Association has a Risk Management Grant program to assist members in financing risk
management initiatives. Members are eligible for a maximum grant of the greater of $500 and
1% of their opening subscribers' equity of that year. Unused eligible funds may be carried
over into subsequent years. During 2021, the Association recorded grants of $374,272
(2020 - $460,127). At December 31, 2021, the maximum outstanding liability associated with
the grants is $ 4,265,086 (2020 - $3,737,388).

Related parties:

Key management personnel of the Association includes all directors, executives, non-executives,
and senior management.

Key management personnel compensation comprised:

2021 2020
Salaries and short-term employee benefits $ 736,079 $ 732,386
Post-employment benefits 52,085 51,843

Total salaries and benefits included in administrative and claims management expenses during
the year was $3,653,997 (2020 - $3,363,905).

Rental income, net:

2021 2020
Gross rental income $ 1,153,639 $ 1.037,002
Operating expenses {720,006) (636,816)
Rental income, net - $ 433,633 $ 400,186

Ceded reinsurance:

To reduce the potential risk that may arise from large losses, the Association cedes premiums to
reinsurers, which limits the loss on any one loss or occurrence in each line of business. For
liability insurance, there is a maximum exposure of $7,500,000 (2020 - $7,500,000) per claim,
and for the property insurance program there is a maximum exposure of $2,000,000 per location.
Any excess is coverad by reinsurance to the limits of any given policy.
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15. Financial instruments and financial and insurance risk:

(@)

(b)

Overview:

The Association has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
e jinsurance risk;

*  credit risk;

s liquidity risk;

s foreign exchange risk;

= interest rate risk; and

* market risk.

This note presents information about the Association's exposure to each of the above risks,
the Association's objectives, policies, and processes for measuring and managing risk, and
the Association’s management of capital. Further quantitativé disclosures are included
throughout these consolidated financial statements.

The Association's primary long-term risk is that the Association's assets will fall short of its
future liabilities (including claims of insured). The main objective of financial risk management
is to maintain assets, primarily through a diversified porifolio of investments to ensure
sufficient liquidity and value to meet obligations when they fall due.

Risk management framework:

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Association's risk management framework. The Board of Directors has designated the
Governance Committee to be responsible for Enterprise Risk Management and it is
responsible for developing and monitoring the Association’s risk management policies. The
Governance Committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its activities.

The Association's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks
faced by the Association, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in market conditions and the Association's activities. The Association, through its
training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations.

The Association's Board of Directors oversees how management monitors compliance with
the Association's risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the
risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Association,
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15. Financial instruments and financial and insurance risk (continued):

{b) Risk management framework {continued):

)

Insurance risk:
Underwriting risk:

Underwriting risk is the risk that the total cost of claims and claims adjustment expenses
will exceed premiums received and can arise as a result of numerous factors, including
pricing risk, reserving risk and catastrophe risk. Pricing risk arises because actual claims
experience can differ adversely from the assumptions included in pricing calculations.

The Association accepts insurance risk through its insurance contracts and is exposed to
the uncertainty surrounding the timing, frequency, and severity of claims under these
contracts. The Association manages its insurance risk via its underwriting and
reinsurance strategy (note 14) within an overall insurance risk management framework.

Underwriting risk is the exposure to financial loss resulting from the selection and
approval of risks to be insured as well as the reduction, retention and transfer of risks.
Insurance policies are written in accordance with the management practices and
regulations within the provincial jurisdiction taking into account the Association's risk
tolerance and underwriting standards.

Reserving risk arises because actual claims experience can differ adversely from the
assumptions included in setting reserves, which is due to the length of time between the
occurrence of a loss, the reporting of the loss to the insurer and the ultimate resolution of
the claim. The Association's provision for unpaid claims and adjustment expenses is
reviewed annually by an independent actuary.

Reinsurance risk:

The Association is exposed to contract disputes and coverage gaps in its agreement with
its reinsurers and the possibility of defauit by its reinsurers. The Association’s strategy in
respect of the selection, approval and monitoring of reinsurance agreements is
addressed by the following protocols:

e regular review of reinsurance agreements to determine their effectiveness based on
current exposures, historical losses and potential future losses; and

s exposures to reinsurance counterparties and active monitoring of the credit quality of
those counterparties.

b
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15. Financial instruments and financial and insurance risk (continued):

(b) Risk management framework {continued)):

(i) Credit risk:

The use of financial instruments involves a credit risk of financial loss resulting from a
counterparty's inability or refusal to completely fulfill their contractual obligations. The
Association’s credit risk lies in its cash, restricted cash, accounts receivable, investments,
reinsurers’ share of unpaid claims and adjustment expenses and recoverable from
subscribers.

The Association’s investment policy establishes limits for the investment portfolio. Factors
used to set these limits include issuer limits, minimum rating requirements, and
concentration limits. The Association primarily invests in money market and fixed income
funds and diversification techniques are employed to minimize risk.

The Association's maximum credit exposure at December 31 was as follows:

2021 2020

Cash $ 6315447 $ B,015360

Restricted cash 500,532 438,044

Accounts receivable 8,121,598 5,637,106
Reinsurers’ share of unpaid claim and

adjustment expenses 12,132,342 7,933,740

Recoverable from subscribers 12,210,385 14,952 856

$ 39280304 § 36,977,106

The Association does not have a significant exposure to any individual subscriber or
counterparty. Concentrations of credit risk on the reinsurers' portion of unpaid claims and
adjustment expenses are with reinsurers located in Canada, Great Britain, and the
United States, which are regularly reviewed to ensure they are of good credit standing.

The Association is also exposed to credit rnisk indirectly through its holdings of fixed
income pooled funds.

(#ii) Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk relates to financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The Association's accounts payable and accrued liabilities are primarily
due within one year.

The Association’s exposure to liquidity risk is minimal as it maintains most of its assets in
readily redeemable funds that provide liquidity to meet obligations as they come due.
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15. Financial instruments and financial and insurance risk (continued):

{b) Risk management framework (continued):

(iv) Foreign exchange risk:

{v)

Foreign exchange risk arises with changes and fluctuations in exchange rates. As at
December 31, 2021, the Association held $6,539,803 (2020 - $10,102,768) of its
investments in US dollar denominated investments, representing 5.4% (2020 - 8.9%) of
the Association's total investment portfolio. All other investments are held in Canadian
dollars; therefore, the Association is not exposed to significant foreign exchange risk.

The Association may be indirectly exposed to foreign exchange risk through its
investments in pooled funds.

Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect the
value of financial instruments or investment income on reinvestment at maturity. The
Association is not exposed to significant interest risk. However it may be exposed
indirectly through its investments in fixed income pocled funds.

{vi) Other price risk:

Market risk refers to the risk that a change in the level of one or more of market prices,
indices, volatilities, correlations or other market factors, such as liquidity, will result in
losses. As investments are recognized at fair value, these changes affect reported other
comprehensive income as they occur. The maximum risk resulting from financial
instruments is determined by the fair vaiue of the financial instruments. The Association
manages other price risk by closely monitoring its investments, and by investing in funds
managed by professional investment advisors. As at December 31, 2021, had the prices
on the respective stock exchange for equity investment increased or decreased by 1%,
with all other variables held constant, comprehensive income would have increased or
decreased, respectively by approximately $344,270 (2020 - $360,886).

{c} Fair value:

The Association’s financial instruments consist primarily of cash, restricted cash, accounts
receivable, recoverable from subscribers, investments and accounts payable and accrued
liabilities.

Investments are carried at fair value. The carrying values of cash, restricted cash, accounts
receivable, recoverable from subscribers and accounts payable and accrued liabilities are
considerad by management {o approximate their fair values due to their immediate or short-
term maturity. These financial assets and liabilities are considered Level 2 instruments (see
note 3(d) for definition of levels) because while observable prices are available, they are not
quoted in an active market.
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15. Financial instruments and financial and insurance risk (continued):

() Fair value (continued):
Caution is necessary in making conclusions relative to the potential gain or loss the
Association is expected to realize due to differences between fair value and carrying value of
the investments because these assets are subject to the above-noted risks.

F



52

MIABC 2021 ANNUAL REPORT / MEMBERS

Members

Group A (Up to 2,000)

100 Mile House
Alert Bay
Ashcroft
Barniere
Belcarra

Cache Creek
Canal Flats
Central Coast RD
Civicinfo BC
Clinton

Fort St. James
Fraser Lake
Gold River
Granisle
Greenwood
Harrison Hot Springs
Hazelton
Hudson's Hope
Jumbo

Kaslo
Keremeos
Lions Bay
LGMA

Lumby

Lytton

Masset
McBride
Midway
Montrose

Mount Waddington
RD

MIABC

Nakusp

New Denver
New Hazelton
North Coast RD
Port Alice

Port Clements
Port Edward
Pouce Coupe
Queen Charlotte
Radium Hot Springs
Salmo

Sayward
Silverton
Slocan

Stewart

Tahsis

Taylor

Telkwa

UBCM

Ucluelet
Valermount
Warfield

Wells

Zeballos

Group B (2,001 to 5,000)

Anmore Pemberton
Bowen Island Port Hardy
Burns Lake Port McNeili
Chase Princeton
Chetwynd Rossland
Clearwater Sicamous
Cumberland Sparwood
Elkford Squamish-Lillooet
Enderby -
Fruitvale Tofino
Giboons Tumbler Ridge
Golden Vanderhoof
Grand Forks

Highlands

Houston

nvermere

Lake Cowichan

Lantzville

Lillooet

Logan Lake

Mackenzie

Northern Rockies
RD
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Group C (5,001 to 25,000)

Alberni-Clayoquot RD
Armstrong
Bulkley-Nechako RD
Castlegar

Central Okanagan RD
Central Saanich
Coldstream
Columbia Shuswap RD
Colwood

Comox Valley RD
Cranbrook

Creston

Dawson Creek
Cuncan

East Kootenay
Esquimalt

Fernie

Fort St. John

Fraser Valley RD
Fraser-Fort George RD
Hope

Kent

Kimberley

Kitimat
Kitimat-Stikine RD
Kootenay Boundary RD
Ladysmith

Lake Country

Merntt

Metchosin

Nelson

North Okanagan RD
North Saanich

QOak Bay

QOkanagan-
Similkameen RD

Oliver

Osoyoos
Parkswville
Peace River RD
Peachland

Pitt Meadows
Port Alberm
Powell River, City
Prince Rupert
gathet RD
Qualicum Beach
Quesnel
Revelstoke
Salmon Arm
Sechelt

Sidney
Smithers
Sooke
Spallumcheen
Squamish
Strathcona RD
Summerland

Sunshine Coast RD

Terrace

Thompson-Nicola RD

Trail

View Royal
White Rock
Williams Lake

Group D (25,000 +)

Campbell River
Centrat Kootenay RD
Courtenay
Cowichan Valley RD
Kamloops

Kelowna

Langfey, City

Maple Ridge
Mission

Nanaimo, City
Nanaimo RD

North Vancouver, District
Penticton

Port Cogquitlam
Port Moody
Richmond

Vernon

Victona

West Kelowna

West Vancouver
Whistler




The MIABC acknowledges that our main office is situated on the
unceded territories of the x*mabk¥ayam (Musqueam), Skwxwi7mesh
(Squamish), and Seliiwitulh (Tsleil-Waututh) Nations. Our organization
works and has members on other unceded territories across the
province. We are grateful for the oppertunity to collaborate with BC's
local governments on these lands.

Wi

Municipal insurance
Association of British Columbia

#200 - 429 West 2% Avenue
Vancouver, BC V5Y 1E3

Phone: 604-683-6266
Fax: 604-683-6244

www.miabc.org




PORT CLEMENTS h
HISTORICAL SOCIETY

P.0. Box 417 Port Clements
British Columbia Canada VOT 1R0

250.557.4576
pcmuseum@qcislands.ca
www.portclementsmuseum.ca _‘/

March 30, 2022

Mayor and Councillors
Village of Port Clements
Via e-mail to: cao@portclements.ca, d.daugert @ portclements.ca

Re: Letter of Support for Gwaii Trust Application
Dear Mayor Daugert and Councillors,

The Gwaii Trust Youth Centred Communities Grant deadline is April 1, 2022, and one of the
requirements for applications is “a signed and dated resolution from the local governance body
supporting the application”. (Letters of support are accepted after the deadline, provided the rest
of the application is complete.) Each Gwaii Trust area can apply for this funding, upto a
maximum of $10,000. As there is no teen centre in our area, applying for funding for teen
programming and/or employment is acceptable.

The Port Clements Historical Society (PCHS) is again asking for Council’s support for a project
building on the past two year’s successful applications to this program. While the previous year’s
applications were all about developing virtual presence, this year, “Involving Youth: Summer
Events for Youth at the Museum” will focus on developing weekly in-person events and
activities for children and youth at the museum and on the museum grounds. With this we want
to encourage younger members of the community to visit the museumn and explore the artifacts
and resources the museum offers in a fun and engaging way. PCHS will hire and train two youth,
ideally students, to work at the museum this summer and create and lead these activities.

PCHS is still finalizing the proposal, but plans to apply for the full $10,000 available.

Thank you for your support,

Shel Fjaagesund
Treasurer

(o0 \



36 Cedar Avenue West
PO Box 198
Part Clements, BC
The Village of VOT1RO
OFFICE : 250-557-4295

PORT CLEMENTS Public Works : 250-557-4326

FAX : 250-557-4568

”Gateway to the Vlﬁldemess” Email : office@portclements.ca

Web : www.portclements.ca

REPORT TO COUNCIL

Author: Kim Mushynsky
Date: April 4, 2022
RE: Widening of section of Sunset Park Trail

BACKGROUND: In preparation for the upgrades to the bird tower and given the large
amount of lumber that would need to be moved there, it is desirable to increase the
width of that portion of the trail highlighted on the attached map to accommodate a
truck being able to deliver the lumber to the job site.

DISCUSSION: The concept of widening the trail to 10 feet was discussed at the February 22,
2022, Council meeting where the following motion was made:
“THAT Council requests staff to provide a sketch of a cross section for the proposed 10
road and summary of the proposed work to be done”

In response to this request, it was further investigated and discussed with Mayor
Daugert, Sean O'Donoghue and Chris Poschmann and it was decided that 9 feet would
suffice for the widening and that the circled area on the map attached would be levelled
(currently contains a depression in the center) so that a vehicle could turn around at this
area and back in the remainder of the way. Much of the trail is already at 8 feet wide so
this would require minimal increase in the trail size and minimal trees that would have to
be removed. In researching trail construction, the author pulled up a document from
2016 when C&C Beachy was contracted to extend our existing trail system by 1300
meters. Attached is an abridged copy of those tender specifications which address only
our current project. These specifications will be what governs the current project to
widen the trail as needed to the Bird Tower.

CONCLUSION: If the widening follows the same specifications as outlined in the 2016 trail
extension the quality of the trail will be consistent with what already exists.

STRATEGIC  This request is made based on the successful grant application to upgrade the
bird tower.

Q\’



FINANCIAL: Funding for these works would come out of the CERIP grant

RECOMMENDATIONS: | request that Council approve the widening of the trail to 9 feet
based on the specifications provided.

Respectfully submitted:



2022 Trail Widening Specifications:

The finished gravel trail surface should be level with or raised above the surrounding ground surface to
ensure stability and drainage.

The finished surface should be crowned to drain to both sides, or if on a side-slope, have a cross-slope to
the low side. Crowning and cross-slopes should be 1.5-3%.

Install geotextile between natural soil surface and trail surfacing to keep surfacing from “punching”
down into the soil.

Construct final tread surface using well-compacted gravel. Gravel must have a maximum size not
exceeding %" and must have sufficient fines to create a dense surface.

Where the trail surface needs to be raised more than 4” use pit run at the base to raise the bed.

Q\,”L



00g11 372
NVY1d 3118

E#309d 338 ONNDAOdWYD 30 Iivi3d 04

VEIWNTOD HSILI¥E "SINIWII 130d

7d LISNNS 40 AIAANS L7INg

JAlM0 AdlAavg

YIMOL M3IA T1ADIA3LIVA

AIAMNS INVLTIND2

HOIS1ANO 1 0 WIS 3VOS001 G3WGSIY 51 ROIIYATTI
TUON SSTIND 331 NI 5wy SIS0 Tw JuDn

= IWY: N

- HIddD4S NI

O s Ny

—— A334)

N RET

Ovadnvs

133AND

e i)

x0F Wwal®ld3ans

3N WIELII3

INIIE3LYA

N, IN3937




REPORT TO COUNCIL

Author: Marjorie Dobson, Chief Administrative Officer
Date:  April 4, 2022

RE: Regular Report on Current Operations

BACKGROUND:
The CAO/Acting CAO updates Council at the Regular Council Meetings on current operations and
challenges.

DISCUSSION:

The report is not an exhaustive list of operational activities that have occurred since the last update or
are occurring, but to provide a general update and identify notable occurrences in current operations
for Council.

Administration:

o

Q

Work in progress to ensure compliance with Provincial & Federal governments conditions of
permit for Drinking water and Wastewater
Critical Infrastructure:
{a) Sewer Lagoon Project: removal of logs is expected to be completed on March 30, 2022,
A waste residue survey is now required before the grubbing can begin. This service will
have to be sourced off the island.
Regarding the construction of the lagoon, the engineer is on track with the drawing which
should be ready for review and tendering soon.
However, there is concern that the impact of the irregular market situation will adversely
impact the cost of construction resulting in insufficient funds to complete the project.
(b} Well #3 Construction & Connection — Design is completed- in the process of getting quotes
from contractors
Sunset Park Revitalization Project: Clearing and clean-up behind bird tower and right of way to
tower is expected to begin early April. The structural engineer visited the bird tower site on
March 24

Finance:

[}

o]
0
o

Year-end rollover

2021 Audit conducted in-person, auditors present week of March 21%.

Work on next phase of budget upcoming — tax rates bylaw and 5-year financial plan bylaw
Reconcitiation of completed grant projects for reimbursement claims from grant bodies.

Public Works:

=)
[=]

(=}

Continuing work in support of Bird Tower/Sunset Trail upgrades with project manager.

Continuing support to engineers and administration for wastewater lagoon upgrade. Log hauling
almost complete.

Concrete pour for Froese light base and bear resistant garbage cans delayed by contractor one
week. Scheduled to be completed Wed. March 30.

Repair completed with Jasper water line break. Issue with unknown position and materials
underground.

Important site inspection on behalf of Northern Health Authority scheduled for Wed March 30th.
Review of test procedures, Well upgrades, as well as an introduction to new CAQ.

PW is concerned about amount of sand and gravel build up on roads left over from extra ordinary
freeze conditions this winter, and that we have no equipment adequate for efficient cleanup and
removal of these deposits.

Respectfully submitted:

Marjorie Dobson, CAQ



